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The AGA Rangemaster Group s a leading international premium consumer brands
business which manufactures and distributes some of the best known and loved kitchen
apphances and intenior furnishings in the world

Qur brands include

Known for its longstanding heritage, technical excellence and innovation, the Group
now operates production faciities in the UK, North America, France, Canada and
Ireland and has worldwide wholesale and retail distnbution
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Strategic and Year to 31st December
operational highlights 2009 2008
£m £m

Cash balances increased to £28C million from Revenue 2450 2794
£5 8 million in the year reflecting the emphasis
placed on strong business processes, good working EBITDA

. 12.6 24.6
capital management and on cash generation (before non-recurring costs)
The Group made a profit before tax in an extremely . ka\el:aﬁng*pknoﬁt 01
tough year for its core product ines internationally before amortisation -

S by -

Markets 1mproved as the year progressed . .
Rangemaster orders were up In the year whilst OPeratlng (lOSS)/pl’Oflt ) ni

AGA cooker orders were ahead in the last quarter

New products backed by strong commercial
offers are designed to maintain the momentum
established at the end of 2009

The Group expects to contribute an additional £2
million this year and next to the Group's pension

scheme Shareholders' equity 133.8 2147

Net cash 28.0 5.8

Willlam McGrath, Chief Executive commented
“The generation of cash was the big achievement
of 2009 and that remains the focus given the
caution needed in the current market Our lead
indicators, however, are positive and after a slow
order intake at the start of the year, the prospects
are encouraging heading into the Spring”
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Overview

The Group responded quickly and well to the downturn
in the consumer markets caused by the recesston which
made 2009 a tough year The Group was well placed to do
so having maintained a net cash position after returning
£140 million wn cash to shareholders in May 2008
following the well timed Foodservice disposal at the end
of 2007 The board pnontised rematning profitable and
having more cash at the end of the year than at the start
thereby ensuring that the Group's long-term financing
arrangements organisedinearly 2008 remained unaltered
The stable financial base meant that the Group was free
to direct its energies to work to integrate operations and
to have a set of disciplined business processes that apply
across the Group These steps helped to reduce costs
In a way that would be in the long-term interests of the
Group and to sustain product investment, positioning the
business for an upturn

Trading performance in 2009

2009 saw sharp falls in demand in the first half before
tevelling out and, in some areas, strengthening later in the
year These trends were reflected in first half sales down
18 8% and sales down 12 3% for the full year This put
2009 revenues at £2450 millon down from £2794
mullion in 2008 EBITDA (pre non-recurring costs) fell
from £24 6 milhonto £12 6 million There was an operating
loss in the first half of £1 7 milion and a small operating
profit in the second half Non-recurring rationalisation
costs were incurred in the year of £3 6 million primanly
from business integration costs and provisions aganst
the carrying value of properties no longer required after
the integration With net finance income in the year and
with pension credits ansing, there was an overall profit
betore tax in the year Given the sharp profit fall and the
continuing market uncertainties the board concluded it
would not be appropnate to pay a dividend 1n respect of
2009

The new generation Rayburn 600, an
all-in-one cooker and boiler, reinforces
our position in the home heating
market.

Strategy for 2010

The 300 years of innovation we highlghted last vear put
us In good stead to deal with the current economic cycle
The warmth felt towards our key brands led by AGA came
through strongly in the year - notably through the 300th
anniversary of the first smelting of iron ore with coke at
the AGA foundry which i1s where the Industnal Revolution
began Qur confidence that the power of our brands will
drive strong performance remans The market conditions
of 2009, however, required us to modify our ambitions for
the business in the short-term and focus on cutting costs
and cash generation to ensure we emerged stronger from
the recession We now have new epportunities to improve
further our market positions

Our key objectives are.

« To continue to grow and create new markets for
our range coockers and cooker/boilers The board
sees energy management m the home - seen In new
Government initiatives to boost renewable energy - as
a major theme for the years ahead and believes that the
product offering it has been developing over the last
decade 15 particularly well attuned to future consumer
requirements

» To widen the position of range cookers in the UK and
Ireland and on the continent as being at the heart of family
Ife and show that the look and functionality of the range
cooker brings benefits over built-in equivalents which
make up the larger part of the market

» To become a significant force in the North American
appliance market under the AGA Marvel brand -
highlighting the best of European style range cooking
and USA made undercounter refrigeration

» Touse the high level of consumer response we receive,
to look to all cur brands to increase the overall sales
opportunities In the home by effective customer
relationship management

AGA Rangemaster Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2009




Chairman's
statement

With our well managed financial position, we have the
financial flexibility to back our brands and tec ensure that
we use the capacity we have avallable to best effect
The board's strategy remains to focus on being the major
force in the range cooker market internaticnally and to use
that to attract consumers to the wider product offering
We will enhance our marketing effort to support our
product introductions and will take market opportunities
that saw the acquisition of Mercury in 2009 and saw that
of La Cornue, Heartland and Stanley in earlier years

We have to take into account our pension scheme to
which we have already provided £50 million in guarantees
of contingent labiities We are finalising funding
arrangements with the trustee taking account of the
2008 actuaral valuation We expect to make additional
payments of £2 milhon into the scheme in 2010 and 20N
Total pension contributions could equate to £10 million
per annum from 2012 depending on the outturn of the
2011 actuanal valuation

In achieving these objectives the Group 1s dependent on
the skilis and commitment of its employees It was an
exceptionally difficult year in which short-time working
was needed mn some factories and staff reductions were
made The continuing enthusiasm and energy in the
Group ensured that confidence grew over the year The
board 1s, of course, grateful to all the employees for therr
contributions Helen Mahy left the board after six years
1 should like to thank her in particular for her important
contribution, notably in the development of our corporate
governance practices

Current trading

Economic uncertainties remain as markets seek to recover
from the long and difficult recession and against that
background we remain cautious and conservative in our
trading and financial expectations We have focused on
having strong business processes and disciplines We will
continue to drive down costs and to generate cash as we
did 1in 2009 In 2010 the Group willcontinue to keep capital
expenditure below depreciation and to reduce inventory
levels The important benefits of integrating AGA and
Rangemaster in the UK will show through Overall the key
factor s the extent of the revenue recovery

The board has thus taken the nght steps to ensure the
Group 1s best placed to take advantage of improved
conditions while remaining cautious and able to continue
with the defensive approach of 2009 that saw costs cut
and cash generation set as a key driver At present the
board would hope that the current year will show a real
improvement A decision on dwidend payments will be
made when the earnings outlook becomes clearer

The cold weather may have slowed short-term actmity
but it has also tlighhighted the wirtues of our heat storage
and stove products and home survey numbers are ahead
of 2009 and confidence in the AGA shops 15 high For
Rangemaster the start of the year has been stower after
the VAT rate assisted end of 2009 but the trend lines
continue to be positive For Fired Earth and Grange
improvement plans covering both broadening of markets
and cost reductions are well underway Headed into the
Spring the Group expects revenues to run ahead of the
prior year

John Coleman
Chairman

12th March 2010
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Business and finance review

Today's AGA Rangemaster Group has its strength in its
much loved brands and well-developed sales channels
and structures In 2008 we concentrated the resources
of the Group on our consumer operations as they
have fong-term significant growth potential ansing
from investments made over many years We focus on
producing products for the kitchen - the heart of family
hfe - led by our outstanding range cookers Looking back,
key decisions in the creation of the Group had been
to make AGA the centre stage brand in 2001 and the
decision to concentrate resources on Rangemaster and
the premium range cooker market and to sell off the lower
added value brands in 2002 The AGA and Rangemaster
operations have since then worked increasingly closely
together In 2009 we decided to integrate the operational
management of the two businesses This has worked well
for all the core processes from product identification and
now for manufacturing and distnbution It means that
the Group has a single strong core cooker operation in
the British Isles - encompassing the Group’s Insh brand,
Stanley

We knew early in 2009 that it would be a difficult year
but we remaned determined not to lose sight of the key
objectives we had set in 2007 for the development of the
Group We discuss below the progress made towards
those obyjectives and related ‘Key Performance indicators’
CKPI'Y With strong links across our international
operations, the appliance-led activities are now well
assimifated and able to benefit from the economies of
scale and the customer-led opportunities of bemng part of
a Group

KPI 1, Grow sales of cast iron cockers

19,600

Rangemaster induction was
taunched in 2007 and is now a firmly
established product line

Sales tn 2007 have proved to be a peak - when a good level
of Insh state supported orders assisted Stanley sales From
mid 2008 1t became clear that customers were deferring
expenditure because of weakening markets while at the
same time there was enthusiasm for our modernisation
programmes Qur response was to continue with the
development themes of making the AGA programmable
across the range and adding upgrade options for products
in the field This focus on customers who may have
acquired their AGA many years ago was a major new
development making all existing owners potential new
customers The Group does expect a significant number
of owners to upgrade their existing modet or return thew
existing model for recycling and purchasing a new product
over the next few years As consumers focused on what
they found essential in their home, we also emphasised
how the warmth and reliability of cast iron cookers was
relevant to modern needs

2009 also saw the Group increase its focus on Rayburn -
and not only the successful upgraded wood burning model
but now a restyled ol senes Rayburn - the all-in-one
caoker/boiler - 1s not only a great cooker but 1ts boiler -
soon to have condensing ol as well as gas models - makes
it tremendously flexible and an attractive alternative
to standard boiler systems With Rayburn launching a
second generation of control systems linking to renewable
energy sources, 1t 1s a highly relevant modern product The
objective 15 to ensure Rayburn 1s seen as a clear option
to consumers and therr installers assessing ‘heating and
eating’ options

In Ireland cast iron cooker sales fell again and for the first
time the stove bustness was a similar revenue generator
to cookers Growth in stove sales in treland and the UK
15 set to continue as consumers ensure that given energy
cost and availability concerns, that they have more than
one energy source 1n their homes

AGA Rangemaster Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2009




The Group continues to make the foundry and factory
complexn Shropshire more efficient It has ample capacity
to produce above the targeted level

KPLII: Grow sales of Rangemaster made cookers

Rangemaster and our wider range cooker brands all proved
resihent - with volumes lower but average selling prices up -
andtowards the end of 2009 orders were runming well ahead
of 2008 levels Rangemaster was 14% down in order values
at the half year but full year order values were just ahead
of the prior year The performance reflects the breadth of
product and the international reach of Rangemaster - with
sales on the continent where there 1s sustained expansion
in France and now growth in Belgium and Holland and more
recently Germany, being up Ireland, in contrast, was agan
well down The purchase of Mercury in August added a
further modern style to our range and with new products to
come to market this year under the Mercury brand aimed
particularly at the independent kitchen specialist market - 1t
1s proving an important addition

Therange cooker market 1n the UK s estimated te be around
113,000 units per annum The total UK equivalent premium
built-in cooker market 15 larger In 2010 Rangemaster and
the related brands will emphasise the case for having the
highly functional, attractive range at the heart of modern
family hfe Our efiicient Leamington Spa factory has the
capability of producing well above the targeted volumes
With higher volume expectations, notably with anticipated
sales in North America of the new AGA Pro+ range, progress
can be made in 2010 towards our performance objective

Our cookware operations comprise AGA Cookware and
Divertimenti and 2009 was a good year Divertimenti has
a new catalogue and has the potential to grow appreciably

The newly upgraded web shopping sites of both brands
have been successful

KPI1l Return Fired Earth and Grange to profit

Fired Earth spectalises in tiles and paint It had another
tough year as consumers deferred major projects Sales
on a like-for-like basis were down 17% and did not show
a marked improvement in the last quarter Fired Earth has
become tightly run and ts admired for its qualty and style
To balance the business, Fired Earth has set out to ensure
it attracts consumers looking for quahty products for
everyday purposes at appropnate prices This development
of ditfusion lines, combined with the new catalogue and
the provision of consumer credit, 15 expected to boost Fired
Earth with awider audience Additionally, a move into fitted
kitchens, with Charles Smallbone designed product with an
affordable luxury message made by Grange, Is an exciting
development The first kitchen in the range attracted the
Editor's pnze at the House Beautiful 2009 Awards and
features 1n our Marylebone High Street store and soon to
be seen in our Adderbury and Cobham stores

Grange similarly had a difficult year as revenues fell sharply
- hitting the US design centre business particularly hard
Short ime working was in place in the factories for much of
the year There was also a major production rationahsation
programme in Lyon, France with three factories being
merged into one The confidence of the dealer base in
the product range and prospects of Grange continues to
improve Orders at the start of 2010 are more encouraging
Particular effort will be made this year to raise Grange's UK
profile using the database resources of the Group

One of the key strategic objectives and a key performance
indicator for the Group remans to see Grange and Fired
Earth return to profit and for the inter-relationships with the
wider customer base to prove effective
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KPI IV International expansion with half the business
to be outside the UK

The largest market for the Group 1s in the UK The objective
1s to make overseas markets account for over half the
business - up from the current 36% On the continent we
continue to progress where the Grange, La Cornue and
Falcon brands are all well established

In North America the Group set about revisiting its
appreach - accelerated by the three year decline in the
apphance market which 15 now just bottoming out We
have integrated our activities under AGA Marvel to provide
our overall market positiorung as having available from
Europe the best range cookers as with refrigeration “at
its best” - made in North America at our new Greenville,
Michigan factory We are delighted with our new Greenville
productian facility which became fully operational in Spring
2009 and has already receved ISC 9001 and 1SO 14001
guality and environmental accreditation It 1s producing at
a substantially lower unit cost than was practical at our
two previous facilities We would bike to acknowledge the
excellent support of the State of Michigan in the successiul
delivery of the project We have just launched the AGA
Pro+in Canada at C$4,000 - a Rangemaster made product
with a single oven and self cleaning features aimed at a
competitive price in the North Amencan market This 1s
backed by a suite of applances ncluding refrigerators
and dishwashers similar to that found in design centres in
the UK We feel that dealers can look to our hot and cold
oftering to anchor their sales efforts

We look to markets less mature than the UK for our products

to provide sustained sales impetus taking us towards our
KPI

The new Fired Earth Tile Basics range
comprises one hundred wall and {loor
tiles starling at 36p per tile, providing
tiles for every budget.

KPI V - Leveraging the Group's customer database

The Group's contact with its customers 1s generated
by advertising, direct marketing and through our retall
operations This continues through our service support for
the products in the field - many of which last for decades
This all provides the Group with a large customer database
in addition to that of dealers selling the Group's products

The Group has 670,000 customers onits UK database and
nearly another 600,000 prospective customers who have
contacted the Group |n 2009 the Group received nearly
60,000 sales enquiries into the contact centre It has nearly
200,000 customers contactable by email It has 120,000
specifically AGA owners on the database - of which nearly
18,000 were added in 2009

Web trafficincreased across the brands in 2009 with AGA
receving over 700,000 wisitors and Fired Earth nearly
600,000 visitors At the start of 2010, web enquiries and
brochure requests have increased markedly and for Fired
Earth and Rangemaster web traffic 1s up over 20% The
Group sees the develepment of customer contact and
the development of cleser inks in the eyes of customers
across the brands as an important source of growth in the
years ahead

KPI VI : Return on sales

The Group believes that by raising efficiencies while also
investing in product that there 1s appreciable operational
geanng available in the business An initial target of a
return on sales of 10% was set in 2007 Some of the
Group's operations achieved returns above that - but the
average was below 10% when the recession impacted the
Group This has not deflected us from the belief that the
brands and therr strength with identifiable customer bases
1s such that returns at or above it - a peak cycle return on
sales target 15 12% - remain a reasonable expectation

6 AGA Rangemaster Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2009




The new generation of Mercury
products, manufactured in
Leamington Spa by Rangemaster, adds

to Mercury's design icon status as @
contemnperary cooker suited to the
minimalist ook
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Raismg efficiencies across the Group to improve
operational gearing

During the recession the Group has accelerated plans
to cut costs, raise efficiencies and rmprove operational
geanng In particular, structures have been streamhned
further - as with AGA and Rangemaster and in the North
American operations - production facilities integrated
- as for AGA Marvel and Grange Company-wide
procurement strategies have helped control costs Over
the last two years the Group has reduced the cost base
by over £9 million through such measures In addition
to major structural programmes 1t continues to identify
and implement a comprehensive programme of process
improvement snitiatives which senior managers have
identified

Home energy management and new product
investments

An underlying theme for the Group 15 investing In
new product A key area i1s looking into home energy
management The Group has the background and the
technologies to play an important part in the changing
approach to energy management in the home The
Government’s new imtiatives to boost the renewable
energy market will further stimulate interest The electrnic
AGA uses a small amount of energy over a long period
and can store energy This works well with the intermittent
nature of wind and solar micro generation The Rayburn 1s
primarily an all-in-one cooker and boiler Its burners can
use biofuels we have field trials with methane produced
from biomass and a blended Bio kerosene ail We are
now hinking Rayburns with wood burning stoves and solar
collectors in a comprehensive home heating package
Our mvestment programmes align our products to the
renewables markets as they develop We aim to make
our products more flexible - future-proofing purchasers
s0 that they can, if not immediately then in due course,
take advantage of the rapidly increasing output of micre
generation and of rehability of non-fossil fuels This has
seen

Burner upgrades can make

mosl existing AGA cookers
programmable saving customers up to
25% on fuel costs.

+  The introduction of the 13 amp electnc AGA n 2005,
made programmable in 2007,

» The launch of the gas condensing boder Rayburn in
2006,

* Introduction of the programmable gas AGA 1n 2008

» The burner upgrade programmes for ol to electnc and
gas AGA models in 2009,

« The launch of the remodelled Rayburn 600 Seres in
20006,

» 2070 will see the second generation of products to hink
energy from wood burning stoves and other renewable
sources with Rayburn boilers providing back up

Consumers are concerned to ensure that therr homes
remain warm and comfortable and that they have reliable
energy sourcesthroughouttheyear Thismeansthathaving
more than one energy scurce in the home 1s particularly
attractive We expect the rapid growth in stove sales to
continue We sold over 20,000 stoves in 2009 and they
are now the core activity of Stanley in ireland and they are
a growing part of sales in the UK

A household with an AGA at the heart of the home will
reguire appreciably fewer other household apphances or
can use them far less The AGA substitutes substantially
for rachators, being itself a very effrcient radiator - hence
an AGA household could use less energy than one
without The AGA CO, emission tonnages run at around
four tonnes for an electric 3-oven product - half the output
of a 4-person househeold In due course 1t 15 likely that the
AGA will link with energy sources generated at the point
of use - the combined heat and power units, solar power
and wind turbines

Pension scheme funding

The Group continues to consider carefully its obligations
to its defined benefit pension scheme which 15 large,
reflecting the Groups long industnial history in the
Midlands The scheme has around 14,000 members of
which circa 650 are current employees

AGA Rangemaster Group ple Annual Report & Accounts 2009
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The triennial valuation as at 31st December 2008 is close
to finalisation 1t1s likely to show a defiait of well over £100
million at a date when there was a £57 5 million surplus on
anaccountingbasis Rolledforwardayearto 31st December
20089, the actuaral deficit 1s considered to be potentially
around £50 million above the accounting deficit of £405
million The Group has previously provided £50 million of
guarantees in support of the Group's potential obhgation
to the scheme 1n 2020 The Group currently expects to
be asked to contribute an additional £2 million per annum
in 2010 and 2011 From 2012 the Group expects to be
asked to contribute around £10 milhon annually to meet
the current service cost and deficit contributions or to
add to the guarantees already provided The 2011 tniennial
valuation 1$ expected to be concluded before these cash
contributions or addibional guarantees are required

The Group continues to work hard and closely with the
trustee of the scheme to ensure that the obligations to
members are met and the costs to the Group are carefully
monitored and managed as the scheme moves towards
the targeted self-sufficiency position in 2020

As part of the management of pension costs, following
consultations, the current member pensionable salaries
were frozen This gave rise to a curtailment gain in 2009
against the previous|AS 19 valuation assumpttons forfuture
salary inflation when applied to higher paid employees of
£3 8 million and will give rise to a curtailment gainin 2010
of around £15 million when applied to all other current
members

The Group would like to reduce the contingent risks the
scheme creates - should markets make that sensible
economucally for all relevant parties

Finance strategy

The Group maintains its conservative approachto finances
in hght of the difficult markets and the scale of the Group’s
pension scheme The Group locked to maintain profits
during the recession while investing carefully in product
for the future

The Group had moved to a net cash posttion at the end of
2007 and we took further action to manage the business
through a severe economic downturn We set the objective
of having more cash at the end ol the year than at the start
It s, therefore, pleasing agamnst this background to report
cash of £28 O mithon compared to £5 8 million This gives
us a strong position upon which we ¢can build

Revenue

Group revenues decreased by 12 3% to £2450 million
from £2794 milhon in 2008 In constant currency the
revenue decrease was 157% Second half revenues of
£127 2 mullion were down 5 3% from £134 3 million which
was much improved on the first half when revenues of
£117 8 million were down 18 8% from the £1451 million
reported in the first half of 2008 Of total revenues 36%
were outside the UK

Operating profit

The operating loss for the year was £15 million (2008
profit £1171 million) The first half loss of £17 million was
partly offset by a small second half profit The results for
the year reflect the significant fall In revenues We took
action early to address the revenue decrease by reducing
headcount by a further 200 to below 2,600 following on
from a reduction of around 400 in 2008 Non-recurring
costs in the year totalled £3 6 million (2008 £5 3 million)
The further reorganisations undertaken in the year were
at a cost of £2 8 millhon Taken together, cost cutling
measures implemented in the last two years have led to
cost savings of over £9 million
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The Group's woodburning stoves have
re-emerged as a key appliance in the
efficient modern home - providing

a degree of independence as an
additional eco-friendly heating source.

Finance income

Net finance income for the year was £0 2 million (2008
£32 million) The movement was prnncipally due to
lower interest income resulting from the substantial
reduction in cash balances following the £140 million
cash return to shareholders tn 2008, lower interest rates
on cash deposits offset by £0 8 million of interest on a tax
repayment received

Taxation

The Group’s tax charge was nil on profits before tax of
£05 million The Group considered the level of tax paid
for years yet to be finalised with the revenue and sought
a tax repayment which was received in the second half
There was altogether a net tax repayment of £4 0 millicn
relating to prior tax years

Moving forward the Group expects to pay tax at around
the UK standard rate of 28% once the benefit of tax losses
arising during the recession have been utilised

Earnings per share

Basic earmings per share were 25 pence (2008 144
pence) based on an average number of shares in 1ssue of
69 2 mullion (2008 859 muilion}

Dividends

While no interim dividend has been paid or a final diidend
proposed for 2009, the board will continue to keep this
under review and Iintends to return to paying a dividend as
s00n as It I1s appropriate to do so

Cashflow

One of the most encouraging features of the year was
the cashflow from operational activities which at £253
million (2008 £4 5 million) was £20 8 million higher The
Increase was manly due to action taken in the first part
of the year to destock in response to the downturn - the
value of inventory held by the Group fell in the year by
£15 3 million Particular focus was also placed on debtor
and creditcr management across the Group The net
inflow from working capital was £22 9 mullion in the year
{2008 outflow of £8 9 million}

New capital expenditure projects in the year totalled £3 4
million which makes the net cash flow on capital items,
including intangibles, £81 million in the year This figure
includes the £2 8 millionfinal payment on the AGA Marvel
factory in the US The depreciation and amortisation of
intangibles charge in 2009 was £8 7 million (2008 £81
million)

The resulting net cash position at 31st December 2009
was £28 0 million (2008 £5 8 million)

10 AGA Rangemaster Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2009
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Canfidence and creativity - Fired
Earth's collage collection from the Tile

Basics range together with Fired Earth
brassware,
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Economic conditions
The economic environment may impact
cansumer spending plans

A swift economic recovery may increase
raw material prices

Alack of consumer confidence may
reduce Group sales, primanly of
consumer appliances and household
products impacting preduction levels and
profitability

Reduced profitability and availability of
comgponents

The naw Divertimenti Directory and
website have brought many new
customers to Divertimenti - the much
loved cook’s emporiumn.

*  The Group monitors economuc conditions in
particular housing market trends

* The Group seeks to diversify sales away
from the UK to reduce individual market
dependency

*  Internal processes continually moritar
prices and the availability of raw materials

Competition
Competitors introduce upgraded products
and add to marketing programmes

Downward pressure on pricing if sector
accepts lower margins

Market share could be lost to competitors
without continuing product imnovation and
strong marketing support

Reduced demand for our products and
negative operational geanng If we were {0
become less price competitive

* Introduce new products that are well
researched and market tested

*  |nvestment in new product development and
design capabilities

= Monitor our market position and competitor
sirategies

* Constant value engineening programmes to
be price competitive

Intellectual property
Fallure to identify the wiolation of our nights
could lead to unfair competition

Others may wmitate our products breaching
our patents, trademarks and copynghts
damaging our brands and profitability

*  Momtor the market to identify breaches of
our proprietary rights
= Take legal action wherever appropriate

Customer/supplier relationships
Some key relationships are cenltral to
trading performance

Loss of critical supphiers/customers could
have a matenal impact on indimdual
company volumes

Interruption to supply can stop production
and impact profitability

*  Sales tearns meet regularly with semior
management of key customers

* Regular monutoring of customer service

* The supply chain team holds regular review
meetings with supplhers

*  Where possible we maintain multiple supply
sources

*  Group seeks to avord one sales account
or supplier being material to overall
performance

Manufacturing
External events, fires or workforce action
could disrupt preduction

Manufacturing techmques and processes
can become outdated

Dssruption to manufacturing for a sustamed
period can impact profits

Product lines age or become absolete or
UNeconomic

*  Dhisaster recovery plans are in place at all
units

* Manufactuning technology i1s shared so that
best practice levels are mamntatned

*  Maintamn regular communication with
workforce/mions

* Investment in new technolozies and
eguipment 1s prioribised

= Ensure business operating standards are
high as seen 1n 150 9001 2008 and 150
14001 2004 accreditations
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Environment
Manufacturing our product impacts the
environment

Energy to run cur products is excessive

Failure to manage our environmental
impacts could damage our brand, lead to
government/regulatory actions resulting in
fines or enforcement notices

We invest to improve environmental
performance

We have envircnmental impact targets
as part of our SO 14001 2004 and
Envirenmental Management System
programmes

We undertake to be a responsible
manufacturer and ensure complance with
all new production regulations

We treat effective energy management in
the home as a priority

The results are momtored at board level

Pecple
Health and safety

Failure to attract, retain and motivate
employees

Failure to meet the appropniate standards

can have a significant iImpact on our people,

damage the brand and lead to significant
financral and operational costs

Loss of key people could damage the future
praspects of the Group

We are committed to the highest standards
and conduct regular audits as seen (n our BS
OHSAS 18001 accreditation

Health and safety 15 a key agenda item at
operattonal and board meetings

Incentive and remuneration packages are
designed to attract, retain and motivate key
staff

Succession planning ss 1in place and reviewed
regularly by the board

Financial
Foreign exchange and interest rates as we
manufacture and sell across the world

The Group uses bank facilities that require
renewal from time to time:

Significant movements can impact both
profitatulity and cash flow of the Group

Underperformance could lead to breaches
n bank covenants, a lack of finance
availability and increased costs

Group offsets currency flows within the
Group wherever possible

Farward foreign exchange contracts are
entered into where necessary

Treasury policy sets framewark for hedging
currency and interest rate nsks

Covenants are maintained against forecasts
Consistent dialogue held with banking
group

Pensions

The funding requirement of the Group s
pension scheme could increase
significantly

The finances of the Group could be
significantly constrained by required
pensions coninbutions

The Group and the trustee have agreed a
long-term funding structure and manage
closely both assets and habilities

Dvidend poticy
Weak markets could impact the Group's
ability to restore dividend payments

Low dividend levels restrict the investment
case

The Group mantains a medium-term
dwidend cover pohcy of it being covered 25
times out of {ully taxed profits
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Grange is renowned for its French
cabinet making expartise and its skill
and craftsmanshipis at the centre of
creating contemporary furniture for
the family kitchen and home

Introduction

Corporate Social Responsibihty ('CSR’) 15 integral to all
aspects of our operations and our Statement of Core
Principles sets out our underfaking to act ethically and
responsibly in all our business relationships and dealings
with stakeholders We are committed to continuous
improvements i all aspects of CSR - our polcies, our
systems, our performance and our reporting

Qur programmes to enhance the sustamnability of our
business and products include responsible sourcing, our
community activities, our health, safety and environmental
programmes and our engagement with employees,
customers and other stakeholders As a supplier of
premium consumer appliances, the Group sees product
stewardship as a key part of its CSR programme We
work to design our products to be more energy efficient
In use, to have a high degree of recyclability and to utilise
eco-friendly and sustainable energy solutions

In addition to this report, the Group provides CSR related
information onits website and its 2009 CSR Report wiil be
pubhshed online in May 2010 The CSR Report will include
further details of our policies and performance with case
study examples describing policy implementation and
effectiveness

Management of CSR

The chief executive 1s accountable to the board for the
Group's CSR policies and procedures He 1s supported by
the Group HR director and by the executive management
committee The management of each operation has
responsibility for CSR and 1s accountable to the chief
executive 1n respect of all CSR matters Environmental,
health and safety policies are included in the schedule of
matters reserved for board approval and CSR 1s included
in the ongoing risk management process

In 2009 the Group continued withits rolling programme of
internal CSR audits which now include an extended range
of compliance matters The audits are undertaken by
functional specialists reporting to the Group HR director
with support from external advisers, where appropnate

Our objective 1s to audit each production site at least once
every two years with a systematic programme of wisits {o
our retall sites During the year all operations were covered
by the CSR/comphance audit process The CSR audit
programme assists with the development of benchmark
standards of best practice across the Group We plan to
implement a new internet based improvement notice
system that will streamline the 1ssue resolution process
across the Group whilst supporting our ongoing working
relationships with supphers and external contacts

The AGA Rangemaster Group 15 a
member of the FTSE4Good index and
uses this index in coemunction with
stakeholder consultations and other
benchmarks to helpidentify key priorities
and to drive progress

Employment and stakeholder engagement

The Group engages in proactive two way dialogue
with stakeholders and n particular liaises with
shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, local
commumties, government bodies, other authonties
and non-governmental organisations This engagement
includes reviews of the impact of our operations on local
communities

Management hold face-to-face bniefing sessions to keep
employees informed of developments across the Group
and to receve feedback Employee communications are
supported by local newsletters Durning 2009 the Company
rolled out its Group-wide intranet The intranet 1s regularly
updated with information from all Group companies and
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15 used as a communications medium and to reinforce
policies and common themes, including health and
safety, envirenmental, core values and employee benefits
We continue to develop content and comments from
employees are welcomed Employees are encouraged to
access the Group’s websites and the intranet During 2010
we plan to extend awareness to include employees who
do not have access to computers as part of their duties
This includes a tnial which will provide computer access in
a number of factories

Human resources

We recognise that our people are key to the Group's
ongeing success and the Group HR director now takes an
active role in developing and embedding best practice and
procedure benchmarking around the Group

During the year the Group employed an average of 2,656
people in six countries Some 71% of our staff are located
in the UK, 19% elsewhere in Europe and 10% in North
America Over 99% are permanent employees, 70% are
male and 30% are female Of those In management roles
75% are male and 25% are female

Voluntary staff turnover during the year was on average
7% across the Group Tota! staff turnover was 13%

In view of the difficult economic and market conditions, the
Group has maintained short time working in selected areas
as part of its policy to avoid compulsory redundancies,
where possible [t has also accepted selected voluntary
redundancies whilst ensuring key skills and capabilities
are retained The Group regularly reviews resourcing
levels and has on-going dialogue with employees, union
representatives and other employee representatives in
this regard

Human resources policies

The Group's pohlicy 15 to invest in its people and to
encourage them to develop to their maximum petential
according to the needs of our operations and our
customers The Group’s Code of Conduct for employees
outhnes the standards of integnty and honest conduct
expected, and explains that breaches of Company policy
may result 1n disciphinary action and dismissal The
Code of Conduct i1s published on the Group’s website
and includes the whistleblowing policy which enables
employees and others to report any breaches of the Code
of Conduct, fraud or any other ¢criminal acts in confidence
and without fear of retribution All employees worldwide
may use the internal whistleblowing provisions and UK
and US employees may alternatively use the external
independent services avallable in those areas All reports
are logged and monitored by the audit and risk committee
and appropniate investigations and action undertaken

We support the Universal Declaration of Human Rights and
the ILO Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights
at Work concerning the fundamental nights including
freedom of association and the effective recognition of the
nght to collective bargaining, the elimination of all forms
of forced or compulsory labour, the effective abolition
of child labour and the elimination of discrimination in
respect of employment and occupation

The Group requires that its operations comply with
its equal opportunities policy and 1t does not tolerate
harassment or discnmination n any form Each
operation must ensure that there 1s equal opportunity of
employment, retention, promotion and training regardless
of race, ethric or national origin, gender, manital status,
age, sexual onentation, religion, trade umon membership
or disability and that appropriate consideration is given to
disabled applicants in terms of employment taking into
account local legislation

AGA Rangemaster Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2009

0
o
x
o
o
2
-
m
v
Q
1]
>
[
.l
m
W
-
o
z
=4
@
=
—
<

15




A Rangemaster Design Centre
bringing together the latest range
of products for customers to view
and receive expert advice from
Rangemaster trained advisers.

Training and development

The Group invests in the capabilities of its employees and
encourages them to be fully involved in their development
and training Some 2,180 days of ‘off-the-job’ training were
recorded during the year This s in addition to ‘on-the-job’
and "tool-box training’

The n-house AGA Management Programme was
launched in March 2009 with the Institute of Leadership
and Management (ILM’) The programme focuses on
leadership, management and supervisory skills Employees
successfully completing the programme are awarded
ILM certificates after completing five training modules
and a work-related project which 1s externally venified by
Mercia Management A total of 66 AGA and Fired Earth
employees have been enrglled on the programme with 31
awards made todate Inaddition AGA currently has atotal
of 84 manufacturing and warehouse based employees
studying for National Vocational Qualifications in the UK

Environmental, health and safety

The Group 15 commutted to the continuous iImprovement
of its environmental, health and safety (EHS')
performance and to enhancing the overall sustainability
of its operations, products and services A summary of
our progress during the year 1s included here and further
details will be included in our 2009 CSR Report

The Group's EHS policies are underpinned by detailed
pracedures within each of the Group's operations
Management are responsible for their implementation
and for keeping all concerned informed of best practice
and the statutory frameworks Policies and practices
are reviewed and updated for changes in legistation
and employees are made aware of the policies and
their responsibility to ensure that these are effectively
apphed The chief executive 15 accountable to the board
for EHS matters, supported by the Group HR director In
practice all employees are responsible for implementing
our EHS policies and for identifying opporturities for
improvement

o5 =L

The Group HR director ensures performance s regularly
reviewed, that targets are set for improvement and for the
benchmarking, leveraging and promoting best practice
As noted above, the system of CSR/comphance audits
supports this work and external consultants are utihsed
when specific needs arise

Health and safety targets and performance

The Group uses a number of key performance indicators
('KPIs"), to monitor accident frequencies, accident causes
and the amount of time lost at all operations and sets
annual iImprovement targets

All our tocations have health and safety management
systems In place Duning the year, the Group's four UK
manufacturing sites were accredited to BS OHSAS 18001
2007, the occupational health and safety standard

Cur long-term aim is to have no accidents, and we made
progresstowardsthisgoalduringtheyear Acrossthe Group
the frequency of lost time accidents CLTAS’) per 100,000
hours was down by 19 5% to 09 LTAs per 100,000 hours
worked This was ahead of our improvement target of 5%
The Jost trme due to acaidents as a proportion of working
time increased by 9% to O 22% aganst our improvernent
target of a 15% decrease This was due to an increase n
the average lost time per LTA to 30 days This was up by
35% agamst a targeted 10% reduction Theincrease was
in part due to two accidents, one of which occurred in
2008 with the employee only returning to work part-time
during 2009 The other occurred in January 2009 and the
employee did not return to work during the year Other
than these two cases, our risk management and ‘return
to work’ imthatives targeting specific locations with below
average performance resulted in a general improvement
in performance

We monitor accident causes on a consistent global basis,
with the most common cause of acodents across the
Group being cuts and abrasions We will continue to focus
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on reducing accidents in this area at locations with below
average performance

LTA* frequency Lost time
LTAs/100k hours worked 9 of working time lost

oo Y o [EECETY
2008 fll 2008 At
2007 s

Lost time per acaident
Days lost per LTA

o0 | ]
ao0n

2007

9] 2007 [2ie)

Ali KPls are for the contiiuing operations only with 2007 restated
accordingly

LTAs are defined as those resulting in lost time of one ar more days not
ncluding the day of the accident

Environmental targets and performance

We work to minimise the environmental smpact of
our business on the environment and to enhance the
sustamabidity ofthe products we make and sell The Group's
environmental impacts include energy use and transport
and the resultant chmate change related emissions, water
consumption and the waste and recycling arising from our
manufacturing processes and general business operations
The environmental data in this report covers 100% of our
manufacturing locations and the retail sites for which the
data is available, in total some 98% of Group revenue
Further details of our performance will be included in the
2009 CSR report

As aresult of efficiency and reduction programmes across
the Group our CO, ermissions intensity over the two years
2007-09 was reduced by 8% to 102 tonnes per £million
of sales This was ahead of our two year target of a 5%
reduction Total 2009 CO, emussions due to energy use
and in-house transport were some 25,900 tonnes, down
from 32,200 tonnes in 2008 and 34,800 tonnes in 2007

Achieving reductions in water use was a major focus at
operations within the AGA and Rangemaster operating
segments during the year As a result, water use was down

from 89,635m? in 2008 to 53,125m? In 2009 and water
intensity was down 27% over the two years 2007-09 to
210m? of water per £milhon sales Our two year target
was for a 5% reduction

Reported waste intensity was down by 2% in the yearto 30
tonnes per £million sales, bringing the reduction over the
pertod 2007-09 to 21% This wasdrniven by alarge reduction
in 2008 and was ahead of our two year reduction target of
5% Total waste was down from 9,276 tonnes 1n 2008 to
7,647 tonnes in 2009 The proportion of total waste which
was recycled increased by 12 percentage points from 62%
in 2008 to 74% in 2009

The Group supporis the adoption and implementation
of environmental management systems across the

Total CO_ intensity* Water intensity Total waste intensity
Tormes 602 per £m sales M3 water use per £m sales Tonnes waste per £m sales

oo | o D) oo D)
2008 7] e00e
) ST

[ J

r?'-f

2008

2007 2007

T |

All KPIs are for the continuing operations oaly with 2007 restated
accordingly

Includes emissions due to energy use and due to 1n-house transpert
operatiens

operations Some eleven locations have environmental
management systems in place covering over 80% of
production, including the two Rangemaster sites which
are accredited to 15O 14001 2004 Fellowing the year end,
the new AGA Marvel site in Greenville, Michigan, USA
was accredited to 1SO 9001 2008 and 15O 14001 2004
We are now also reviewing plans for the two AGA sites In
the UK to achieve 1SO 14001 accreditation in 2011
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Fatcon is a fast growing brand on the
continent.

Environmental improvement inttiatives

The Company has a number of programmes n place to
suppert and facilitate environmental improvements across
the Group The 2009 Group environmental competition
inspired entries from across the operations and a varety
of energy saving and waste reduction ideas were received
from employees The winning entries came from AGA
Marvel and Rangemaster employees Both entries were
based on the same theme - to reuse waste heat from ar
compressors and exhaust gases and to convert this into
a useful, environmentally friendly source of heat for the
premmses and for curing painted parts These initiatives
were iImplemented during the year and will help increase
efficiency, save costs and reduce our carbon footprint

At Grange, a new drying process was introduced by
creating separation in the existing dryer, combined with
a shght increase in temperature and improved ventilation
This cut the drying time per operation by 70% and has
significantly reduced energy usage

We continue to make improvements in waste intensity and
we are extending the use of waste compactors across the
Group which helps cut disposal costs and CO, emuissions
due to fewer skip removals

Fired Earth was the winner of the Oxfordshire Waste
Partnership Sustainabiity Award in 2009, reflecting an
ongoing cemrmitment to the environment Fired Earth has
introduced a number of imtiatives including eco-friendly
and reusable packaging and it recovers as much packaging
as possible to prevent it going into the waste stream In
2008, Fired Earth reduced packaging use per £mullion
sales by 11% and recycled 90% of all waste

Compliance

There were no environmental or health and safety related
fines, penalties or prosecutions by any regulatory body
during the year

Product stewardship

The Group continues to place great emphasis on
consumer and environmental issues We are committed
to minimising the environmental impact of our products
duning manufacture, in use and at the end of ife We aim
to offer our customers well destigned, quahty products
which have been sustainably sourced, are energy efficient
and have a high degree of recyclability We work to ensure
that the products we make and sell are compliant with
the REACH (Registration, Evaluation and Authornisation
of Chemicals), the RoHS (Restriction of the use of certain
Hazardous Substances) and WEEE (Waste, Electrnical and
Electrome Equipment) Directives

We are also pursuing eco-friendly and sustamnable energy
solutions to help ensure that our products address
increasing concerns over the use of energy and the related
CO, emissions Further detalls of the economic and
environmental performance of our cast ron cookers and
the resulting conclusions are set out 11 the "‘Aganemics’
and ‘Rayburnomics’ papers avalable on our website
These emphasise the multi-functional nature of the
products, their recyclability and their long ives Increased
flexibility, burner upgrades, energy management systems
and the potential to link with alternative sources of
energy confirms the relevance of cast iron cooking to
contemporary needs

Supply chain - ethical trading policy

The board recognises the importance of managing its
supply chain to ensure, so far as 1s practicable, that its
direct and indirect supphers adopt the same core principles
as the Group The Group first introduced an ethical trading
pelicy in 2002 This encompasses a set of global sourcing
principles covering far terms of employment, human
nights, health and safety, equal opportunities and good
environmental practice All operating companies are
required to review supphier compliance with this policy,
identify any areas of non-conformance and take action
where appropnate The Group monitors guahty, design
and availabtity of all sourced components and products,
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{o ensure high standards are maintaned The Group's
suppher development programme has been updated to
include a more comprehensive monitoning questronnare
to help ensure suppliers conform to standards set by the
Group

All print and paper sourced by the Group 15 accredited to
Forest Stewardship Council (*'FSC”) and the Program for the
Endorsement of Forest Certification (‘PEFC’) standards

Customers

The Group's customer service strategy 15 to respond
rapidly to evolving customer demand, to identify and
anticipate emerging needs and to continuously improve
product avalabibty, quality and value Our qualty
managernent systems help ensure that our products meet
or exceed customer requirements with 70% of the Group's
manufacturing capacity accredited to SO 9001 2008

In the coming year we will further engage with our
customers to reinforce our product stewardship and other
customer related imitiatives Our customer relationship
management team keeps owners and potential owners
of our products up to date on our new product and sales
initiatives

Community invelvement

Each of our operations and their employees are
encouraged to become involved with and to support
local community projects, educational estabhishments,
chanties and other causes This support takes various
forms including donations, fundraising, payroll giving or
personal time and commitment Qur retall operations
also organise events and allow chanties to hold meetings
n their outlets Chantable nitiatives include financial
and product donations, equipment mamntenance and
employee involvement

Liaisen on community Issues s encouraged and comments
are logged, responded to and reviewed at Group tevel

In 2009, the Group began working to rarse funds and
awareness for The Place2Be - an innovative and award
winning UK registered charity that works inside schools to
improve the emotional well-being of children, their families
and the whole school community Cur retail shops have
hosted a number of fundraising events for The Place2Be

Fired Earth launched a campaign to raise funds to support
the work of the National Trust inthe UK Between 20p and
S0p per can of paint sold through Fired Earth stores and
independent stockists 1s donated to the National Trust

The Group continues to support Birchfield Harriers - the
UK's premier athletics club and its members as they
prepare for the London 2012 games

Details of other imitiatives to support local charities and
community events will be included 1n the Group’s 2009
CSR report

Verification

In addition to our internal CSR audit programme, those
operations certified to 1SO 140012004 and other
standards are subject to regular external audits Since
March 2002 the Group has also been advised by CSR
Consulting Ltd, who assist the Company in evaluating its
policies and procedures and with the reporting and review
of 1its CSR related performance CSR related nisks are
included in the Group's nsk management process and at
present the board does not believe that an overall external
CSR audit would be appropriate However, where required
the Group utilises external specialists as necessary The
information in this CSR report 1s not subject to audit by
Ernst & Young LLP
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John Coleman (B*, A, N*, R}
Chairman (independent)

John Coleman was appotnted an independent non-executive director in March 2008 and
became chairman of the board in May 2008 John chairs the nomination committee and
became a member of the audit and risk and remuneration commttees in January 2010
John s currently executive chairman of Holidaybreak plc and a non-executive director of
Travis Perkins plc He was chief executive of House of Fraser plc from 1996 to 2006 Pnor to
that he was chief executive of Texas Homecare and held a number of serior management
posttions within the Burton Group PLC He 1s a chartered management accountant

Willhlam McGrath (B)
Chief executive

Wilhlam McGrath was appointed chief executive in March 2001 William joined the
Group as finance director (n October 1997 from Aggregate Industries plc where he had
become finance director 1n 1992 He had previously worked in the investment banking and
construction sectors He s a qualified accountant and a history graduate

Shaun Smith (B)
Finance director

Shaun Smith was appointed to the board as finance director in March 2001 Shaun jomed
the Group from Marks and Spencer plc 1n 1989 and worked in treasury becorming the group
treasurer 1n 1999 He 1s a co-opted member of the audit committee of Birmingham City
University He Is a qualified treasurer and economics graduate

Pam Sissons
Company secretary

Pam Sissons [oined the Group in 1999 and was appointed company secretary in October
2004 SheisaFellow of the Chartered Insurance Institute and an Asscciate of the Chartered
Institute of Secretanies and Administrators

B Board member

A - Audit and nsk committee member

N - Nomination committee member

R - Remuneration commutiee member
denotes chairman of the board or committee
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Paul Jackson (B, A N, R)
Non-executive director iIndependent)

Paul Jackson janed the board in December 2005 Paul has spent his career in advertising
He started his career with Saatchi & Saatchi and later became executive managing partner
and vice chairman of Amrrati Puns Lintas He joined Ogilvy & Mather, part of WPP Group,
In 1999 He was a director at Ogilvy Group and chief executive of Ogilvy & Mather, until
2007 He has wide expenence in brand and international product development

Paul Dermody OBE (B, A", N, R)
Non-executive directar (independent)

Paul Dermody joined the board in March 2004 and chairs the audit and risk committee
Paul 15 a non-executive director of Majestic Wine PLC and chawman of the trustees of
The National Football Museum He was formerly chief executive of De Vere Group Ple,
having spent his career with its predecessor Greenalls He s a chartered management

accountant

Peter Tom CBE (B, A, N, R*)
Non-executive director (senior Independent director)

Peter Tom joined the board in February 2004 and chairs the remuneration commitiee Peter
has spent his career in the aggregates industry He started his career at Bardon Hill Quarnes
Limited and was appointed chief executive of Aggregate Industrnies ple in 1997, until the
sale of the company in 2005 Peter 1s the chairman of Leicester Football Club plc (Leicester
Tigers), Rapid Realtsations Fund Limited and Marwyn Matenials Limited and 1s a director of

NewRiver Retaill Limited

Qdvog 3HL

Advisers

Auditor
Ernst & Young LLP
No 1 Celmare Square

Birmingham
B4 6HQ

Bankers

Svenska Handelsbanken AB

HSBC Bank ple¢

Lloyds TSB Bank plc

The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc

Financial advisers
and stockbrokers

Numis Secunties Limited

The London Stock Exchange Building
10 Paternoster Square

London EC4M 7LT

Execution Noble & Company Limited
Block D

The Old Truman Brewery

91 Brick Lane

London E16QL

Registrar
Equimiti Limited
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing

West Sussex
BN99 6DA

Telephone UK 0871384 2355
International Q0 44121415 7046

Solicitor

Allen & Overy LLP
One Bishops Square
London E1 6AD
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report on the affairs of the
Company and the Group, together with the financial
statements and the independent auditor's reports for the
year ended 31st December 2009

Principal activities and business review

AGA Rangemaster Group plc 1s the holding company of
the Group Detailled information on the Group's principal
activities, 1its performance during the past year and its
prospects for future development are reported in the
charrman’s statement on pages 2 to 3, the chief executive's
review on pages 4 to 11, key nsks and uncertainties on
pages 12 to 13 and corporate social responsibility on pages
141019 The staterments and reviews are incorporated into
this report by reference The principal trading substdiaries
and the countries in which they operate are shown on
page 78

Results and dividends

The profit attnbutable to equity shareholders for the
penod was £17m (2008 £124m) and 15 shown in the
consolidated income statement No interm dividend
was paid n the year (2008 4 Op per share) No final
dividend is recommended for the financial year ended 31st
December 2009 (2008 nil per share)

Directors and their interests

The names and biographical detalls of those persons
serving as directors of the Company as at the date of this
report are shown on pages 20 to 21 Details of changes
to the board during the year and of the directors offering
themselves for re-election at the AGM are set out on
page 30

Details of directors’ service agreements are set gut in the
directors’ remunerahion report on page 39

The interests of the directors in shares of the company are
set out in the directors’ remuneration report in the table
on page 37

Directors’ indemnities

Directors and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries
benetit from directors’ and officers’ habilty insurance
cover in respect of legal actions brought against them
This prowision, which 1s a quahfying third party indemnity
provision as defined by section 234 of the Companes
Act 2006 ('CA2006'), was in force throughout the
financial year and remains in force In addition, directors
of the Company are ndemnified i accordance with the
Company's articles of association and to the maximum
extent permitted by law All directors have deeds of

indemnity that are in force as at the date of this report
Neither the insurance nor the indemnities provide
cover where the relevant director or officer has acted
fraudulently or dishonestly

The Trust Deeds to the Company's principal UK pension
scheme ncludes the prowvision of an indemmty from
the Company to the scheme trustee’s dwectors, save n
the case of gross negligence or conscious bad faith and
only to the extent that the provision of the indemnity
to such directors would not infringe applicable legal
reguirements

Articles of association

The board of directors may exercise all the powers of the
Company, subject to the provisions of relevant statutes,
the Company's articles of association (the ‘Articles’)
and any directions given by a special resolution of
the shareholders The Articles, for instance, contain
certain specific provisions and restrictions regarding the
Company's power to borrow money Powers relating to
the 1ssuing and buying back of shares are included in the
Artictes and such authorities are renewed by shareholders
each year at the AGM The rules for the appointment and
removal of directors set out in the Articles are detailed in
the corporate governance report on pages 29 and 30

The Articles can only be changed by a special resolution
passed in a general meeting of shareholders The Company
15 committed to ensuring 1t keeps pace with changing
legislation and regulation Accordingly, the directors
propose to recommend to shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting CAGM ) that the current Articles be
updated pnmanly to reflect the implementation of the
Companies {Shareholders’ Rights) Regufations 2009 and
the remaining provisions of the CA 2006 Full details are
set out in the Notice of AGM

Charitable and pohitical donations

Chanitabie donations made durning the year were £4,801
(2008 £22,952) These donations were made across
the operations principally to local charities serving the
communities n which the Group operates No political
donations or political expenditure were made during the
year (2008 nil)

Employees

The average number of employees within the Group 1s
shown in note 5 to the accounts The Group 1s committed
to the fair and equitable treatment of all its employees,
irrespective of sex, race, age, religion, disability or sexual
onentation To this end, policies have been implemented to
ensure this 1s practised at recruitment and then continues

AGA Rangemaster Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2009




throughout an individual’s employment with the Group
The Group encourages recruitment, traiming, career
development and promotion on the basis of aptitude and
abiity, without regard to disability It 1s also committed
to retaining and retraiming as necessary employees who
become disabled during the course of their employment

The Group has a policy of actively communicating
information to employees concerning the development
of the Group and how this may affect theirr interests
and of ensuring their appropriate involvement We have
introduced a Group wide intranet which employees
can access which provides up to date information on
developments around the Group Employee involvement
in the Group's performance continues to be encouraged
threugh share ownership Further detaills of the Group's
human resources policies are provided on pages 15 to 16
of the CSR section

Health, safety and environmental

It 15 imnportant for the Group to provide and maintain a
safe environment for all employees, customers and other
visitors to its premises and the wider workplace The Group
complies with the relevant health and safety legislation in
the junsdictions in which it operates The Group's health
and safety policy and performance 1s regularly reviewed
by the board

The Group also recogmses that 1t 1s part of the wider
community and that it has a responsibility to act in a way
that respects the environment and the social well-being of
others The Group's environmental policy and performance
against objectives and targets i1s regularly reviewed by the
board Further details are included on pages 16 to 18 of the
C5R section of this report

Research and development

Research and development plays an important role in
the development of the Group Product innovation has
been a key feature of the Group's strategy Development
departments across the Group are increasingly working
together to develop products for our international
customerbase The Group capitalises certain development
spend under IAS 38 Duning the year, the Group capitalised
expenditure on development of £17m (2008 £2 5m)

Supplier payment policy

The Group’s policy 1s to settle terms of payment with
suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction,
ensuring that supphers are made aware of the terms
of payment and to endeavour to abide by those terms
and conditions, subject to the supplier perforrming to its
obligations

Trade payables at the year end equated to 77 days of
related purchases (2008 63 days)

Treasury management

The Group's policy on the use of financial instruments and
the management of finanaial nsks 1s set out in note 19 to
the accounts

Share capital

Details of authorised and issued share capital, together
with details of the movements in the Company's 1ssued
share capital are provnided n note 22 to the accounts
Under the CA2006 companies will no longer need to have
an authonsed share capital and a resolution will be put to
the AGM to take advantage of this deregulating measure
The Company has one class of ordinary share in issue
and all issued shares are fully paad Each ordinary share
of 467/s pence carries the nght to one vote on a poll at a
general meeting of the Company Deadlines on exerctsing
voting rights are set out in the Notice of AGM and in the
Proxy Form

There are no restrictons on transfer or hmitations on
the holding of the Company's ordinary shares and no
requirements for prior approval of any transfers Under
the Company's articles of association, the directors have
the power to suspend voting rights where the holder of
shares fails to comply with a notice issued under section
793 of the CA2006

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding
nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by
the general provisions of the articles of associatron and
prevailling legislation The directors are not aware of any
agreements between holders of the Company’s shares that
might result in restrictions on the transfer of secunties or
on voting rights

Details of share based payments can be found in note 23
to the accounts Participants in employee share schemes
have no voting rights i respect of the shares subject to
those awards until the allocations are exercised, at which
time the shares rank equally with all other ordinary shares
inissue No such schemes have any rights with regard to
control of the Company

At the 2009 AGM, shareholders approved a resolution
to permit directors to allot ordinary shares of 467/s pence
each up to an aggregate nominal amount of £10,818,136
(being approximately one third of the norminal value of the
Company'sissued ordinary share capital) and to undertake
market purchases of its own shares up to a maximum
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number of 6,923,607 ordinary shares of 467/ pence
each These authonties will expire at the forthcoming
AGM and, in accordance with current best practice,
the Company will seek to renew them No shares were
allotted or bought back under these authorities during
the year and at present the Company does not hold any
shares in treasury

Change of control

There are a number of agreements that take effect after,
or terminate, upon a change of control of the Company,
such as commercial contracts, bank facility agreements,
guaraniees, property agreements and employee share
plans None of these are constdered to be significant in
terms of their hkely impact on the business of the Group
as a whole Furthermore, the directors are not aware of
any agreements between the Company and its directors
or employees that provide for compensation for loss of
office or employment that accurs because of a takeover
bid

Substantial shareholdings

As at the date of this report, the Company had been
notified, in accordance with chapter 5 of the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules, or through other disclosures of
substantial interests in the share capital of the Company
as set out inthe table on page 25

Disclosure of audit information

Each of the persons who 15 a director at the date of
approval of this annual report confirms that so far as
each of the directors 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware,
and each of the directors has taken all steps that they
ought to have taken as a director i order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information (as
defined) and to estabhsh that the Company's auditor 1s
aware of that information Relevant audit information
means information needed by the Company’s auditor in
connection with preparing his report This confirmation
1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of section 418 of the CA2006

Auditor

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to
continue in office as auditor and resolutions to re-appoint
them and to authonse the directors to determine their
remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM

Going concern

The directors have assessed the financial position and the
future funding requirements of the Group and the Company
and compared them to the level of available committed
borrowing facilities Detals of cash and borrowing
facilittes are set out in note 18 to the accounts The
Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing
its capital, its financial risk management objectives, details
of s financial instruments and hedging activities, and its
exposure to credit risk and hquidhty risk are set out in note
19 {o the accounts

The directors’ assessment Included a review of the
Group's financial forecasts, financial instruments and
hedging arrangements for the 15 months from the balance
sheet date The directors considered a range of potential
scenanogs within the key markets the Group serves and
how these may impact on cash flow, facility headroom and
banking covenants

The Group and Company's business activities, together
with the factors hkely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in the chief executive’s
review on pages 4 to 11 The directors also considered what
mitigating actions the Group could take to hmit any adverse
consequences

Having undertaken this assessment, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group
have adequate resources to continue In operational
existence for the foreseeable future and so determine that
it 1s appropriate for the 2009 Company and Group financial
statements to be prepared on a going concern basss

Annual General Meeting

The AGM of the Company will be held at Mallory Court
Hotel, Leamington Spa, Warwickshire at 100 am on
7th May 2010 The notice converning the meeting, together
with the special business to be considered and explanatory
notes for each resolution, 15 distnbuted separately to
shareholders Itis also available onthe Company’s website
www agarangemasier com, where a copy can be viewed
or downloaded 1n ‘PDF' format by following the link to
Investor Relations and then AGM or Report & Accounts
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Directors’ report

% of voting nights Ordinary

and i1ssued share shares of Nature of
Notifying person{s) capital  467/;3p each holding
Pension Insurance Corporation Ltd 1900 13,155,000 direct
BlackRock In¢ 107 6,891,243 indirect and cfd
J O Hambro Capital Management Group Ltd 977 6,765,120 direct
Cazenove Capital Management Ltd 663 4,593,253 direct and cfd
Pension Corporation GP Ltd and others 534 3,698,229 direct
JP Morgan Chase & Co 497 3,439,953 indirect
Prudential plc group of companies 389 2,694,715 direct
Legal & General Group Plc 381 2,644,302 direct
Deutsche Bank AG 378 2,601902 direct
BlackRock UK Equity Recovery Fund 301 2,087,369 direct

Cautionary statement

Under the CA2006, a company’s directors’ report 1s
required, among other matters, to contan a fair review by
the directors of the Group’s business through a balanced
and comprehensive analysis of the development and
performance of the business of the Group and the position
of the Group at the year-end, consistent with the size and
complexity of the business

The directors’ report set out above, including the
chairman’s statement, the chief executive’s review, the
principal risks and uncertainties and corporate social
responsibility incorporated into it by reference (together,
the directors’ report), has been prepared solely to provide
additional information to shareholders to assess the
Company's strategies and the potential for those strategies
tesucceed The directors’ report should not be relied upon
by any other party or for any other purpose

The directors’ report (as defined) contains certain forward
looking statements These statements are made by the
directors in good faith based on the information available
to them up to the time of their approval of this report and

such statements should be treated with caution due to
the inherent uncertainties, including both economic and
business nisk factors, underlying any such forward-looking
information

By order of the board,

P Sroors

P M Sissons
Company Secretary
12th March 2010

Registered office.
Juno Drive, Leamington Spa,

Warwickshire, CV31 3RG

Company registered number: 00354715
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for prepaning the annual
report, the remuneration report and the Group and
Company financial statements n  accordance with
applicable laws and regulations

Company law reguires the directors to prepare imancial
statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have prepared the Group financial statements
In accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ('IFRS") as adopted by the EuropeanUnion {'EU')
and the Company financiat statements in accordance
with the applicable law and Urited Kingdom Accounting
Standards {Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (‘UK
GAAP)) and the remuneration report i accordance wth
the applicable law The Group and Company financial
statements are required by law to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and
of the profit or loss of the Group for that period

In preparing those financial statements, the directors are
required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and apply them
consistently,

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent, and

+ state that the Group financial statements comply
with IFRS as adopted by the EU and, with regard to
the Company financial statements, that applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to
any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements

Thedirectors are responsible for keeping properaccounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial positton of the Group and the Company
and to enable them to ensure that the Group financial
staterments and the remuneration report comply with
the CA2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other srregulanities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integnty of the Company website The work carried out by
the auditor does not involve consideration of these matters
and, accordingly the auditor accepts no respeonsibility
for any changes that may have occurred to the financial
statements since they were ally presented on the
website Legislation in the United Kingdom governming the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other junisdictions

Responsibility statement
Each of the directors confirm that to the best of thewr
knowledge

* the Group financial statements, prepared n
accordance with {FRS as adopted by the EU and the
Company financial statements prepared under UK
GAAP, give a true and fair view of the assets, iabilities,
financial positien and profit of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a
whole, and

+ the chief executive's review, which 1s incorporated
into the directors’ report, includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and
the position of the Company and the undertakings
included in the conschidation as a whole, together with
a description of the principal nsks and uncertainties
they face

By order of the board,
o .\-t.c&au:/.
Wilham McGrath

Chief Executive
12th March 2010

Shaun Smith
Finance Director
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Corporate governance

The directors of the Company are committed to the highest
standards of corparate governance in the management of
the Company and the Group The directors consider that
the Company has applied the principles and complied
with the provisions of section 1 of the Combined Code
on Corporate Governance (the 'Code’) adopted by
the Financial Reporting Counail {'FRC') in June 2008
throughout the year ended 31st December 2009 This
report, together with the directors’ report set out on pages
2 to 25, the remuneration report set out on pages 34 to
41 explains our governance policies and practices and
descnbes how the Company has applied each referenced
section of the Code Further infermation on the Code
can be found on the FRC website (www frcorg uk) This
statement has also been prepared in compliance with the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules ( DTR') made by the
Finanoial Services Authority ( FSA ) specifically DTR72 -
Corporate governance staterments

A, Directors

A.1The board

The board of directors 1s responsible to the Company's
shareholders for the success of the Company, the Group's
system of corperate governance, setting broad strategic
objectives, monitoring business and financial performance
and for the stewardship of the Company's resources The
board 1s satisfied that it meets the Code's requirements
for effective operation

The board promotes the success of the Group and provides
leadership within a framework of prudent and effective
controls that enable nisks and opportunities to be assessed
and managed In pursuance of the Group's strategy,
the board has delegated the day-to-day operational
management to the chief executive but it has agreed a

formal schedule of matters reserved solely forits decision
The reserved powers ensure that certain transactions,
significant interms of size or type are undertaken only after
board review and approval Matters specifically reserved
for board approval cover a range ofkey 1ssues including the
development of corporate strategy, long-term objectives
and the approval of annual budgets, financial reporting
and internal controls, treasury policy, major changes to
the rules and funding of the Company’s pension schemes,
corporate governance matters and nisk management and
social, environmental and ethical matters The matters
reserved for the board were reviewed and updated dunng
2009 Delegated authonties are also clearly defined

The board has a schedule of regular meetings and may
hold additional meetings as necessary Table 1 below sets
out the names of each board director, their attendance at
meetings and those board commuttees of which they were
amember dunng the year ended 31st December 2009

The terms of reference of each board committee are
reviewed annually by the board Copies are available on
request from the company secretary or on the Group's
corporate website (www agarangemaster com) Following
formal consideration the board may, on occasion, delegate
authonty to a standing committee consisting of at least
two directors to facilitate final sign-off for an agreed
course of action within pre-defined parameters

The iographical details of the directors serving on the
board at the date of this report are set out on pages 20
to 21 During the year the board comprised two executive
directors and five non-executive directors The two
executive directors are William McGrath, chief executive
and Shaun Smith, finance director John Coleman was
appointed to the board in March 2008 and he became

Table 1 Audit and risk Remuneration Nomnation
Director Board committee committee committee
W B McGrath 9/9 - - -
S M Smith S/9 - - -
J Coleman S/9 - - 2/2
P B Dermody S/9 3/3 3/3 2/2
P E Jackson /9 3/3 3/3 2/2
H M Mahy (resigned 31st Dec 2009) (note 1) 9/9 2/3 3/3 2/2
P W G Tom (note 2) 8/9 2/3 3/3 2/2

Altendance 1s expressed as the nurnber of meetings attended/number ehgible to attend
note 1- Helen Mahy was unable to attend one audit and nisk commuttee meeting due to prior commitments, which were notified in advance
note 2 - Peter Tom was unable to atiend one board and one audit and nisk committee meeting due to prior commitments, which were nolified

In advance
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charman of the board in May 2008 He met the
independence criteria defined inthe Code at the time of his
appointment There were four independent non-executive
directors serving on the board - Paul Dermody, Paul
Jackson, Helen Mahy and Peter Tom

Helen Mahy resigned as a director on the 31st December
2009, having served six years as a non-executive
director

A.2 Chairman and chief executive

It 1s the Company's policy that the roles of chairman
and chief executive are separate, with their roles and
responsibihities clearly defined and recorded

Thechairman is responsible for the effective running of the
board and 1ts governance The chairman’s other significant
commitments are disclosed in his biography and changes
to these commutments were disclosed to the board during
the year The board considers that these commitments
do not hinder the chairman’s ability to discharge his
responsibilities to the Company effectively

The chief executive 1s responstble for the leadership and
day-to-day management of the Group This includes
formulating and recommending the Group's strategy for
board approval in addition to executing the approved
strategy

The chief executive has chosen to discharge his
responsibilities for the operational management of the
business with the chief operating decision maker being the
executive management committee, which meets regularly
throughout the year its members currently compnse the
executive directors, Willlam McGrath and Shaun Smith
and semor operational management - Mike Bufton, Gary
Green and Richard Eagleton The execulive management
team reviews results and makes assessments of
performance together with decisions about resource
allocations within the AGA and Rangemaster operating
segments and there 1s regular dialogue and meetings
with the operations Those members of the executive
management committee and other senior managers who
are not directors of the Company are regularly invited to
attend and present at board meetings The respective
roles of the board, executive management committee
and operational management are discussed further under
internal control

A.3 Board balance and independence

The Code recommends that at least half of the board
excluding the charman should comprise non-executive
directors determined by the board to be independent
Each of the non-executive directors has been deterrmined
by the board to be independent according to the cntena
set out In the Code and to have no business or other
relationship that could interfere matenally with the
exercise of therr judgement The independence of the
non-executive directors 15 considered at least annually
Each non-executive director possesses a wide range of
skills and expenence The senior independent director
throughout the year was Peter Tom and he 1s available to
meet shareholders as required

Directors' conflicts of interest

Directors’ have a statutory duty to avoid a situation in
which he has, or can have, an interest that conflicts or
posstbly may conflict with the interests of the Company
A director will not breach that duty if the relevant matter
has been authorised in accordance with the Articles by
the other directors In line with the CA2006, the Articles
were amended in 2008 to allow the board to autheonise
potential conflicts of interest that may anse and impose
such limits or conditions as 1t thinks fit The decision to
authorise a conflict can only be made by those directors
wha have no interest in the matter being considered and
in making such decision, the directors must act in a way
they consider in good faith will be most hkely to promote
the Company’s success

The Company has established a procedure whereby
actual or potential conflicts of interest are regularly
reviewed by the board and updated as appropriate This
procedure has operated satisfactorily throughout the year
Appropriate authonsation would be considered pnior to
the appointment of any new director

A 4 Appointments to the board/nomination
committee

During the vyear the nomination committee (‘the
committee’) compnised John Coleman (chairman), Paul
Dermody, Paul Jackson, Helen Mahy and Peter Tom The
chief executive, senior management and external advisers
may be invited to attend meetings at the request of the
committee The committee met twice during the year and
attendance s set out in table 1 .on page 27

The committee’s terms of reference are available for
review on the Company's website and comply with the
Code These set out the main responsibilities of the
committee All non-executive directors are appointed for
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an initial three-year term pursuant to a standard letter
of appointment, which 1s avallable for viewing at the
Company’s registered office during normal business hours
and at the AGM

During the year, the committee reviewed the re-election
of directors under the provisions in the Articles and the
renewal of terms of office of non-executive directors
Paul Dermody and Peter Tom were appointed as directors
n 2004 and their mmihial three year terms of office were
renewed 1n 2007 During the year, following a rnigorous
review In accordance with the Code, the committee
recommended the renewal of Paul Dermody's and Peter
Tom’s appointments for further three year terms, subject
to re-election by shareholders as required under the
provisions in the Articles

The committee, in conjunction with the board, receives
updates from the chief executive, the Group HR director
and other advisers, as appropriate, on succession and
development planming for semor positions within the
Group On an ongoing basis, the committee reviews
the size, structure and composition of the board and its
committees Such reviews take Into account the balance
of skills, knowledge and expenence of the existing board
members to establish whether any further appointments
or changes were deemed necessary Following the
resignation of Helen Mahy in December 2009, the
committee undertook a further review and also considered
the membership of the commuttees of the board and made
recemmendaticns to the board effective from January
2010 At present the committee does not believe further
appointments to the board are required

The board accepted all recommendations made by the
nomination committee during the year

A 5 Information and professional development

The company secretary, under the chairman’s direction, 1s
responsible for ensunng that information flows within and
between the board and its committees, the non-executive
directors and senmor management The company secretary
15 also responsible for advising the board, through the
chairman, on governance matters

The board has a forward rolling business agenda, whichis
updated after each meeting to include specific topics that
directors have requested be reviewed at future meetings
The board reviews the key activities and performance
of the business and recewves papers and presentations
from the executive management committee, other senior
managers and external advisers to enable it to discharge
its duties effectively

On jotning the board all directors receive appropriate
induction training which 1s tallored to the director's specific
needs Major shareholders are offered the opportunity
to meet new non-executive directors Directors receive
regular updates appropriate to the business throughout
the year and the Company provides resources for directors
to develop and refresh their knowledge and capabilities
as required All dwectors are suitably qualified, trained
and experienced so as to be able to participate fully in
the work of the board Training needs are discussed with
each director as part of the annual board performance
evaluation

To assist with the independent conduct of their function,
the non-executive directors are able to obtain professional
advice at the Company's expense, if required in connection
with therr duties A process I1s n place to facilitate thss
In addition, all directors have access to the advice and
services of the company secretary The appointment or
removal of the company secretary 1s a matter reserved for
hoard decision

A.6 Performance evaluation

The board, as part of its commitment to ensure its
effectiveness, carnied out a formal evaluation of 1its
performance and processes during the year and 1t also
reviewed the performance of its committees and the
individual directors Eachdirectorcompleted a confidential
questionnaire which considered a number of areas
including the performance of the chairman, executive and
non-executive directors, the operation and performance
of the board, its committees and the commuttee chairman,
governance matters and evaluation methods

The questionnaire was supplemented with a private
meeting with the chairman, which covered a broad
range of topics including discussions on specific projects
and performance, areas for improvement, as well as a
review of individual pertormance, knowledge gaps and
training requirements The expected time commitments
and independence cnlena were reviewed for each
non-executive director

Following the review, the results and observations were
summarised by the chairman in a report to the board
It concluded that the board and its committees were
operating effectively and agreed actions in respect
of certain processes and procedures dentified for
mprovement The aim of the action plan s to continually
improve processes, procedures and performance The
chairman confirmed that each director was contributing
effectively to the Group's performance and demonstrated
commutment to his duties
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The schedule of matters reserved for the board, statements
outlining the roles of the chairman and chief executive,
the terms of reference of the committees and other policy
statements are reviewed annually as part of the formal
evaluation process These were last updated in December
2009

The chairman communicates frequently with the
non-executive and executive directors Directors are
encouraged to discuss any issues or concerns with the
chairman at any time throughout the year and to ensure
that any unresolved issues are formally minuted The
chairman and non-executive directors met during the year
without the executive directors present

The chairman’s performance was reviewed by the
non-executive directors, led by the senior independent
director and taking into account the views of the executive
directors

A.7 Re-election

In accordance with the Articles, any director appointed
durning the year will stand for election at the next generat
meeting and all dwectors will stand for re-election at least
every three years These requirements ensure that each
board member is subject to re-election at regular intervals

Non-executive directors are imitially appointed for a term
of three years subject to election and re-election as set
out above, and subject to satisfactory performance, their
three year term of appointment may be renewed Should
a non-executive director serve for more than six years
their re-election would be subject to particularly ngorous
review Should any non-executive director serve for longer
than nine years they would then be subject to annuat
re-election

Thus year, two directors will be standing for re-election at
the AGM to be held in 2010, namely, Wilham McGrath
and Peter Tom Biographical details of both of the directors
standing for re-election are given on pages 20 and 21
William McGrathis chief executive and details of hisrolling
service agreement are set out on page 39 Peter Tom was
appointed as a non-executive director in 2004 for animitial
three year term which was renewed for a further three
years in 2007 Duning the year, following a ngorous review
in accordance with the Code, the nomination commitiee
recommended the renewal of Mr Tom's appointment for a
further three year term, subject 1o shareholders approving
his re-election in accordance with the Articles

The board considers that the performance of the directors

proposed for re-election continues to be effective and they
make a valuable contribution and demonstrate a strong
commitment to therr respective roles The directors were
subject to performance evaluation during the year The
board unanmimously recommends the re-election of each
of these directors

B Remuneration

Details of the directors’ remuneration and the work of the
remuneration comrmittee, as required by the Code and
Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts & Reports) Regulations 2008, 15
included in the remuneration report on pages 34 to 41

C Accountability and audit

C.1 Financial reporting

All communications with shareholders, regulators and
other stakeholders are designed to present a balanced
and understandable wiew of the Group’s position and
prospects We repaort to our shareholders on a half-yearly
basis, supplemented by interim management statements
and other market announcements, as appropriate
The statement of the responsibility of directors for the
preparation of the annual report, remuneration report and
the financial statements under IFRS and UK GAAP s set
out on page 26 The Group going concern statement 1s on
page 24

C.2 Internal control and risk management
The board confirms that it has complied with the Code
in respect of the revised gwdance on internal control
published in October 2005 (the Turnbull Guidance) and
1s reporting in accordance with that guidance

The board of directors has overall responsibility for
reviewing and approving the Group’s system of internal
controls and its adequacy and effectiveness This
established system of internal controls includes financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
systems The audit and risk committee assists the board
in discharging 1ts review responsibilities and considers
reports from the Group's independent auditor and internal
auditors on the effectiveness of the operation of internal
control procedures It is the role of management to
implement the agreed policies on nsk and control and to
continually monmitor sk and control systems

Qur systems of internal financizl and operational contro!
are designed to facihtate effective and efficient operations,
to safeguard assets, to ensure proper accounting records
are mantained, to provide rehable financial information
for use Iin the business and in exterpal publications,
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to i1dentify and manage business nsks, to mamntain
compliance with appropriate legislation and to identify
and adopt best practice Qur nsk management process
identifies the key nsks facing each operation within the
AGA and Rangemaster operating segments and the
Group as a whole Management reports to the audit and
nsk committee and the board on how those risks are being
managed

Such a system of internal control can only manage rather
than eliminate risk of faillure to achieve business objectives
and can provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance
against matenial misstaterment or loss It 1s necessary to
take commercia! risks in the course of the management
of the Group s operations and those nsks are evaluated
as part of the decision making process The board has not
identified or been advised of any sigmficant failings or
weaknesses where action has not been taken which might
have a material impact on the business

The process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
risks faced by the Group and its operations 1s ongoing
The process covers all the Group’s operations The audit
and nsk committee formally reviews the operation and
effectiveness of the Group's systems of internal controls
on an annual basis The latest review covered the financial
year to 31st December 2009 and included the period to
the approval of this repart and financial statements

The Group's risk management framework requires the
operations to record formally the significant risks they
face The process identifies both short and long-term
risks to business performance and takes into account
the likehhood of occurrence and potential impact Risks
considered include operational and financial contingencies,
legal and regulatory compliance and social, environmental
and ethical 1ssues Management s required to identify key
internal controls for each of the risks they are responsible
for and to identify control owners

The main features of the internal control and nsk
management systems include

+ an estabhshed internal organisational structure with
clearly defined hnes of responsibility, authonty and
accountabiity including the segregation of certain
duties and functions and a schedule of matters
reserved for the board,

» well established and clearly documented control
structures including documented accounting policies
and procedures with which all the Group's operations
are required to comply or obtain express dispensation
from, with an agreed miigating action plan,

» comprehensive business planning, nsk assessment and
financial reporting procedures, including the annual
approval of a strategic plan and budget by the board
and preparation of detailed operational budgets for the
following year,

+ detailed financial reporting with monthly consolidated
management accounts reviewed by the executive
management committee and circulated to all board
directors These compare actual performance to
the annual budget, forecasts and the prior year The
accounts are used to update forecasts and other
information to enable the board to assess the prospects
of the Group,

» specific procedures for the appraisal and authorisation
of capital expenditure and other major projects,

» certamof the Group's key functions (including company
secretanal, insurance, nternal audit, penstons, taxation
(compliance and planning) treasury and financial
accounting) are performed centrally under the control
of executive directors and the board receives regular
updates on the work undertaken by these functions,

* regular meetings of the board and the executive
management committee,

« an ongoing risk management process designed to
identfy and mutigate or manage any material nsks
identified This process Is further descrnibed in this
section and in the key nisks and uncertainties on
pages 12 to 13 This includes self assessment by
management teams and a bi-annual Group overview
being undertaken and reviewed by the audit and risk
committee

At operational level, there are regular management
meetings to review all aspects of the Group’s business,
including potential and actual nsks to the Group Executive
directors undertake frequent visits to the operations within
the AGA and Rangemaster operating segments to discuss
strategy, review business performance and significant
operational and financial rnisks Key procedures include
planming, budgeting and investment appraisal Feedback
1s provided to the board

Local management are responsible for the implementation
and centinual monitoring of the systems of internalfinancial
and operational controls and nsk management and they
are supported by suitably qualified and experienced
personnel They report back to internal audit annually by
way of the controls self assessment questionnaire

The internal audit function undertakes a rolhing programme
of visits to review internal control and risk management
processes with particular reference to the Turnbull
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Guidance Copies of the internal auditors’ reports and any
recommendations made in them are communicated to the
relevant level of management The internal auditors report
directly to the audit and risk commuttee on a regular basis
Follow up visits are arranged if considered necessary and
the implementation of recommendations (s monitored

C.3 Audit and risk committee

Durning the year, membership of the audit and nsk
committee (‘the commttee) compnsed Paul Dermody
(chairman), Pau! Jackson, Helen Mahy and Peter Tom
All members of the committee are considered by the
board to be independent The board has determined
that Paul Dermody has recent and relevant financial
experience

The chairman, chief executive, finance director, head of
internal audit and the external auditor attend the majonty
of meetings by nwvitation Other senior management
and adwvisers are invited to attend meetings as required
The head of internal audit reports to the finance director
and has direct access to the chairman of the committee
The committee members, all other directors and senior
management have direct access to the external auditor
throughout the year, to seek advice or raise any 1ssues or
concerns The committee met three times during the year
and attendance 1s set out in table 1 on page 27 During
the year, the committee members met with the external
auditor without the executive management being present
Following the resignation of Helen Mahy as a director
on 31st December 2009, the nommation committee
recommended that John Coleman become a member of,
but not chair the committee, with effect from 1st January
2010 John Coleman was independent at the time of his
appointment as chairman of the board

The committee’s terms of reference are available for
review on the Group’s website and comply with the Code
These set out the main responsibihties of the committee
During the year the commuttee’s activities have included

* monitoring the ntegnty of and reviewing the
Company s financial statements focussing on the key
judgemental areas and accounting policies,

= reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's systems
of internal financial control, operational control
and compliance control, nsk management and
whistleblowing arrangements,

* monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal audit function, resourcing levels, agreeing the
programme of work and recewing reports ansing from

the work of internal audit,

= montoring the performance of the external auditor and
the effectiveness of the audit process, their findings in
relation to the annual report and half-year report and
the consohdation process, icluding their review of the
effectiveness of controls across the Group,

= reviewing various financial and technical updates
during the course of the year, including the guidance
notes issued by the FRC

Review of the external auditor

The committee has delegated responsibiity for making
recommendations to the board on the appointment and
removal of the external auditor The auditor ts subject
to annual re-appointment by shareholders at the AGM
The committee conducts a continuous review of the
relationship between the Group and the auditor, including
the nature and scope of the external audit, consideration
of the auditor's independence and objectivity and advance
approval of any fees for non-audit services above a
pre-agreed threshold as set out in the policy agreed by the
committee A breakdown of the audit and non-audit fees
1s set out in note 4 to the Group accounts The committee
discussed the level of fees and considered them to be
appropriate given the recent reorganisation of the Group
The committee only endorses the use of the audit firm
for taxation complance work and some specafic tax
advisory work when the commuttee believes they are best
placed to carry out the work During the year non-audit
work undertaken by the audit frm principally related to
these services The committee 15 satishied that the level
and scope of the non-audit services does not impair the
independence and objectivity of the auditor The Group
1s increasingly looking to use a panel of advisers going
forward and will take into account which firmisin the best
position to undertake the work effectively

Ernst & Young LLP were appointed auditor following a
formal tender exercise overseen by the commuttee in June
2006 The auditor confirms bi-annually that therr policies
ensure audit independence and provides the committee
with a report of their own audit quality procedures

The commttee keeps the potential re-tendenng of the
external audit services under review and the committee
believes that alternative advisers could be appointed in
the event of the auditor withdrawing from the market
The committee made a recommendation to the board
with respect to the level of audit fees paid to the external
auditor and their re-appointment as independent avditor
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Corporate governance

The board accepted all recommendations made by the
audit and nisk committee durning the year

Resclution 5 set out (in the Notice of AGM recommends
that shareholders re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as
the Company's independent auditor and Resclution 6
authorises the directors to determine their remuneration

D Relations with shareholders

D 1 Dialogue with institutional shareholders

Inits reporting to shareholders, the board aims to present
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's
financial position and prospects and this 1s outhned 1n
the chief executive’s review Relations with shareholders
are managed mainly by the chief executive and finance
director There are regular institutional, analyst and
media presentations which cover a range of relevant
1ssues including strategy, performance, management and
governance within the constraints of information already
made publicly available

The chairman ensures that the views of shareholders are
communicated to the board as awhole The board receves
feedback from broker and shareholder meetings During
the year, the chairman, chief executive and finance director
undertook a review of the brokers used by the Company
This resulted 1n the appointment of Nurmis Secunties and
Execution Noble as joint corporate brokers

The chairman held meetings with shareholders durning the
year and s available to shareholders to discuss governance
and strategy Following such meetings a bniefing note
15 circulated to the board as a whole and the key topics
raised by shareholders are discussed No formal meetings
were requested with the sentor independent director or
the other non-executive directors during the year, but they
remain available to attend meetings on requast

The Company has taken advantage of the provisions
within the CA2006 allowing communication to be
made electronically to shareholders where they have
not requested hard copy documentation As a result the
Company's website has become the primary method of
communication for the vast majonty of shareholders
Copies of the major presentations including the annual and
half-year results presentations, all market announcements
and share price information are made avallable on the
Group's corporate website

D 2 Constructive use of the AGM

The AGM s attended by all members of the board and
this prowides a valuable opportumty to communicate with
shareholders and for private investors to meet with the
directors, semor managers and the Company's advisers
and to ask questions

The Notice of AGM and related papers are sent to
shareholders at least twenty working days before the
meeting, and separate resolutions are proposed on each
substantial issue Usually at an AGM each resolution 1s
dealt with on a show of hands, with details of the results of
proxy voting announced thereafter Immediately after the
AGM the Company 1ssues a market announcement setting
out the results of the AGM and details of all votes cast are
made available on the Group’s corporate website

Details of the 2010 AGM are set out in the Notice of AGM
In a separate circular issued to shareholders, along with
details of the facilities available for proxy votes to be cast
electronically The Company offers shareholders the nght
to withhold their vote, If they so wish, in line with best
practice

By order of the board,

P Aoons

P M Sissons
Company Secretary
12th March 2010
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This report has been prepared by the remuneration
committee and has been approved by the board The report
has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 8 of the
Large and Medium-sized Compamies and Groups (Accounts
& Reports) Regulations 2008 (the ‘Accounting Regutations’)
under the CA2006 The report also meets the retevant
requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authonty and describes how the remuneration commuttee
has applied the principles relating to direclors’ remuneration
in the Combined Code on Corporate Governance 2008 (‘the
Code')

The CA2006 requires the auditor to report tothe Company’s
members on certain parts of the directors’ remuneration
report and state whether in their opimon those parts of
the report have been properly prepared 1n accordance with
the Accounting Regulations The report has therefore been
divided into separate sections for audited and unaudited
information

A resolution will be proposed at the AGM which invites
members to approve the remuneration report for the
financial year ended 31st December 2009

Unaudited information

Remuneration committee

During the year, the remuneration commitiee (‘the
committee”) comprised Peter Tom (charman), Paul
Dermody, Paul Jackson and Helen Mahy All members of the
committee are considered by the board to be independent
The committee met three times during the year and details
of attendance at committee meetings can be found in table
1on page 27 The chairman of the board, chtef executive and
external advisers are invited to attend meetings as required
Following the resignation of Helen Mahy as a director on 31st
December 2009, the nomination committee recommended
that John Coleman become a member of, but net charr, the
committee with effect from 1st January 2010 John Coleman
was independent at the time of his appointment as chairman
of the board Neither the chairman of the board nor any
executive director participates in any discussion relating
to his own remuneration No committee member has any
personal financial interest, other than as a shareholder, or
other conflicts of interest in relation to matters to be decided
by the commuttee The remuneration of the non-executive
directors 15 decided by the board as a whole on the advice
of executive directors, supported by external benchmarked
data and the independent remuneration advisers to the
committee

The committee keeps iself fully informed of all relevant
developments and best practice in the field of remuneration
and seeks advice from external advisers when it considers it
1s appropniate The committee appointed, and continued to
use KPMG LLP ('KPMG') as its independent remuneration
and benefits adviser Dunng the vear, KPMG has provided
actuanal advice to the Company, guidance on developments
andbest practice inthe field of remuneration and has assisted
the Company with the drailing of and taxation advice relating
to the proposed intreduction of a Company Share Option
Plan ('CSOP') KPMG provided some non-audit services to
the Company during the year in relation to general taxation
advice The fees were less than £10,000 During the year
the committee also received advice from Alithos Limited in
relation to performance monitering under the Long-Term
Incentive Plan Ahthos has no other relationship with the
Group

The committee's terms of reference are available for review
on the Group's website and comply with the Code These set
out the mainresponsibihities of thecommittee The chairman
of the committee i1s avalable to discuss remuneration
arrangements  with  shareholder representatives as
required

Items discussed by the commuttee during the year to enable
it to discharge i1ts duties (in accordance with its terms of
reference included

= a review of market trends and publicly available
benchmarked data to review the competitiveness of
remuneration policy and arrangements for the executive
directors and senior management,

» areview of the overall balance of benefits between the
fixed and vanable components,

+ a review of executive bonus scheme targets and
agreed the bonus payable for the financial year ended
31st December 2009,

+ a half yearly review of performance n refation to the
awards granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan and
the vesting status at the end of the performance penod

» areview of the share schemes and remuneration policy
elsewhere 1in the Group, which led to the proposal to
introduce a CSOP,

= areview of the current investor guidelines on executive
remuneration,

= areview of the disclosures in the remuneration report

The board accepted all recommendations made by the
rermuneration committee dunng the year
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Remuneration policy

The Group’s remuneration policy s designed to ensure
that the remuneration of executive directors 1s sufficiently
competitive to retain and motivate the existing directors
and to attract high calibre candidates to ensure the
continued success and development of the business The
performance measurement of the executive directors
and determination of their annual remuneration package
15 undertaken by the committee, taking into account the
level and structure of remuneration of senior management
and pay and conditions elsewhere in the Group

The current policy 1s based around the foliowing principles

* that total compensation should be set at levels that are
competitive In comparison to companies of a simiar
profile, size by turnover and geographical spread from
within and outside the industry sector,

* to position base salaries around the median level in
the relevant pay peer group and to supplement base
salaries by variable performance related rewards
and incentives which can raise the total value of
the remuneration package into the upper quartile, if
demanding performance targets, which are aligned to
shareholder interests, are met,

+ to align management incentives with the creation of
shareholder value over both the short and longer term

The main elements to the remuneratron package for
executive directors and senior management are as
follows

Fixed

= Basic annual salary

= Benefits in kind and cash benefits
* Pension benefits

Vanable % of salary

* Annual bonus related to the Group's
performance and strategic objectives

* Annual award of mil cost options under
the Long-Term incentive Plan, with
vesting after three years subject to
parformance conditions being met

Up to 75%

Up to 100%

Bastc salary

Salaries for the executive directors are reviewed annually
and are targeted broadly at the median position in the
relevant pay peer group The committee takes into
consideration the size, complexity and responsibilities of
the individual’s role, the individual’s experience and the
overall business performance In deciding the appropriate
level, the committee considers salary practices prevailing

inthe Group as a whole and relies on independent research,
which gives up to date infermation on a comparator group
of companies

it also considers the balance between fixed and varnable
rewards and the total compensation achievable Basic
salaries were reviewed 1n December 2008 and the
committee decided that in view of the general market
conditions and previous gudance from the remuneration
adwiser there would be no increase in basic salanes for the
executive directors effective from 1st January 2009 Basic
salartes were reviewed by the Committee in January 2010
and it was agreed that a 2% increase would be awarded
effective from 1st January 2010

Benefits in kind

The executive directors receive certain benefits in kind,
principally the provision of a car or car benefit, fuel or
equivalent cash allowance, private health care and hfe
assurance

Annual bonus

The committee establishes the objectives that must be
met each financial year if a cash bonus 1s to be paid In
setting appropnate bonus parameters, the committee
reviewed independent research on a comparator group of
companies compiled by the remuneration adviser In 2008
the maximum bonus potential was reduced from 100%
to 75% of basic salary, subject to meeting challenging
performance conditions In 2009, the committee
mamtained the maximum bonus potential at 75% of basic
salary However, the key performance indicators were
revised to align them with the Group's stated strategic
objectives The performance targets set measured the
improvermnent in profit and delivery of cash targets set in
the budget and aligned with market expectations This
was subject to a sliding scale, with a maximum award of
37 5% of basic salary being paid for superior performance
under each of the performance targets The commitiee
approved the targets at the beginning of the year and
reviewed performance against these targets and key
growth objectives during and at the end of the year The
directors are not entitled to an award in respect of the
profit target However, the cash targets were exceeded
substantially The committee considered all the relevant
facts, taking into account the underlying performance of
the business, current investor guidehnes and that fact that
the directors had agreed to waive part of therr bonus, as
they had done in the prior year The committee exercised
its discretion and recommended that a bonus award
of 20% of basic salary be made to the directors for the
financial year ended 31st December 2009
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Share option schemes

All equity based awards granted under the Company's
share plans are subject to qualfying services
Commitments to 1ssue new shares or reissue treasury
shares, when aggregated with awards under all the
Company's other share schemes, may not exceed 0%
of the 1ssued share capital in any ten year period (5% of
the 1ssued share capital in any rolling ten year penod in
respect of discretionary schemes, this mit may only be
exceeded if vesting 1s dependent on significantly more
stretching performance conditions)

Long-Term Incentive Flan ('LTIP')

The LTIP seeks to motivate and retain executive directors
and other senior executives, to enable them potentially
to benefit from improved total shareholder return ('TSR")
and the earnings per share (EPS") performance of the
Company The commuittee admunisters the LTIP and the
grant of nil cost options under the LTIP The maximum
annual nil cost option award that can be made to an
individual 15 equivalent to 100% of basic salary The
options granted will only become exercisable (vest) if the
performance conditions are met

In considering the balance between fixed and vanable
rewards and the total compensation achievable and
awards made under the LTIPinrecent years, the committee
decided not to make any awards under the plan dunng
2009 The authonty to grant options under the LTIP
expired in May 2009

A full summary of the performance conditions attaching
to outstanding awards can be found in note 23 to the
accounts To the extent that these performance conditions
are not met at the end of the three year penod, the options
will lapse Once an option has vested, the percentage of
the options which have vested may be exercised during the
remainder of a ten year period from the date of the grant
of the option The committee believes the performance
conditions remain appropnate The committee regularly
receives reports on actual Company performance against
the relevant conditions from Althos Limited The LTIP
options granted in 2006, which had completed the three
year performance period and were available for vesting
during the year, lapsed as the performance condition had
not been met

The committee does not plan to renew the authonty for
the LTIP at present It 1s, however, recommending that a
CSOP be adopted (see below)

Sharesave Plan

The Group also operates an HMRC approved Sharesave
Plan which 1s open to eligible employees, including the
executive directors, on the completion of a mimmum
service perod at the time of inwtation The committee
considers whether to offer invitations annually, but did
not proceed with an invitation in 2009 Savings contracts
are of three or five year terms and subject to a maximum
monthly savings hmit of £250 The committee has the
discretion to grant options at a discount of 20% of the
market value at the date of grant (2008 options were
granted at market value) Therr exercise is not subject to
performance conditions

Company Share Option Plan
The Senior Executive Share Option Scheme lapsed in
2004

Following advice from KPMG in 2009, the committee
recommended that anew HMRCapproved Company Share
Option Plan be introduced This will enable the committee
to make grants of approved and unapproved share options
to employees (subject to headroom limitations) This will
enable participants to benefst from an increased market
capitahisation of the Company If the CSOP 1s adopted the
committee will be responsible for supervising the plan
and the grant of options under its terms The performance
criteria will be set by the committee at the time an option
1s awarded The first award, will require the Company’s EPS
to increase to a mimimum of 10p per share for minimum
vesting and up to 20p per share for full vesting over the
three consecutive financial years commencing with the
financial year in which the grant 1s made Upon vesting
the option may be exercised for the rest of its ten year ife
without further test

The Company's policy Is to grant options to the directors
at the discretion of the committee taking inte account
individual performance The committee will be able to
make awards of up to 100% of basic salaries in exceptional
corcumstances, and subject to headroom However, grants
wilt be imited to a maximum of 50% of basic salary in the
first year It s the Company’s policy to phase the granting
of share options rather than award them in a single large
block to any individual

Further details of the plan rules are set out on pages 11to
12 of the Notice of AGM and Resolution 12 will be put to
shareholders to approve and adopt the new CSOP
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Directors’ interests

The benefrcial interests of the directors serving at the
year ended 31st December 2009 in the ordinary shares
of AGA Rangemaster Group plc are shown in the table
below Directors’ interests include the interests of thewr
spouses, civil partners and infant children or step children
as required by section 822 of the CA2006

At At At

12th March 31st December 31st December

2010 2009 2008

W B McGrath 102 632 102632 102,632
S M Senith 85,278 85,278 85,278
J Coleman 5,000 5,000 5,000
P B Dermody 13166 13166 13,166
P E Jackson 2,032 2,032 2,032
H M Mahy - 5,222 5222
PWGTom 15 000 15 000 15,000

The executive directors are required to builld a significant
holding in the Company Directors will be expected to
retain 50% of the shares vesting under share plans In
practice the executive directors have retained 100% of
options exercised over the last five years and neither of
the executive directors has sold any shares during the last
five years

Pension arrangements

The committee takes into account pension arrangements
and associated costs in reviewing remuneration policy
Pensions and retirement benefits provided to executive
directors are currently considered by the commuttee to be
appropriate but are kept under review in hght of changing
circumstances including the planned changes to restnct
tax relief on contributions to the pension scheme for
higher earners

The executive directors are members of the Group's UK
pension scheme on a defined benefit basis of pension
provision Their dependants are ehgible for dependants’
pensions and the payment of a lump sum in the event of
death In service On thewr retirement from service at therr
normal retirement age of 60, the arrangements provide
for a pension of two-thirds of final pensionable salary
The pensions of Willam McGrath and Shaun Srmuth are
subject to the statutory earnings cap No other payments
are pensionable and there are no unfunded pension
promises or similar arrangements for directors Willam
McGrath and Shaun Smuth receive additional salary in lieu
of pension on remuneration above the statutory cap as
detailed in table 2 on page 40

On death after retirement the spouse’s pension payable
will be 50% of the member's pre commutation pension
for Wilham McGrath and 63% of the member's pre
commutation pension for Shaun Smuth

Post retirement pension increases for Wilhar McGrath’s
pension will be in line with statutory requirements Shaun
Smith's pension will receive annual post retirement
increases on pension earned prior to st October 2001
al the increase in RP| subject to a maximum of 5% and a
mimmum of 3%, on pension earned between 1st October
2001 and 30th September 2005 at the increase in RPI
subject to a maximum of 5% and on pension earned on
and from 1st October 2005 at the increase in RPI subject
toamaximumof 2 5% The Trustee of the pension scheme
with the consent of the Company has the discretion to
grant pension increases above these rates

The transfer values corresponding to the directors'
accrued pensions at 31st December 2009 after deduction
of contnbutions paid by them, are shown in table 3 on
page 40 Executive directors recetve life assurance cover
equal to four times their basic salary During the year
the Company paid premiums respectively of £2,346 and
£1,488 to prowvide iife assurance cover on that part of
William McGrath's and Shaun Smith’s basic salary above
the statutory cap for the year

The Company closed the Group's UK pension scheme
to new members on a defined benefit basis of pension
prowvision in 2001 and froze the pensionable salaries
of current active defined benefit members of the UK
Pension Scheme at the end of 2009 for higher earners
and in January 2010 for all other active defined benefit
members From 2002 new members of the scheme join
on a defined contribution basis of pension provision

Performance graph

The following graph shows the comparative TSR
performance of the Company against the FTSE All
Share Index during the previous five financial years
The TSR indices used in the chart have been calculated
in accordance with paragraph 5 of Schedule 8 of the
Accounting Regulations relative to a base date beginning
on 31st December 2004 This requires that when
calculating TSR, all cash payments made to the Company's
shareholders, including special payments in addition to
ordinary dividends, are treated as immediately reinvested
in further ordinary shares in the Company at the prevailing
market pnice on the date of receipt by shareholders
Therefore the Company’s TSR performance as reflected in
the graph below reflects the substantial special payment
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to shareholders by the Company in May 2008 of 121 pence
per share As the Company's share price fell markedly in
the second hali of 2008, this special payment exacerbates
the detenoration in the Company’s TSR as presented If
shareholders did not in fact immediately reinvest therr
special payments into the Company’s shares, but retained
the payment in cash until 31st Becember 2009, then therr
actual return would have been better as demonstrated by
the dotted line

The FTSE All Share Index has been selected as a comparator
because the Group believes it 1s the most meaningful
market index of which the Company 1s a member
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Directors' contracts

Non-executive directors

The chairman and the non-executive directors have letters
of appointment stating thewr annual fee and that ther
appointment 1s initially for a term of three years subject to
satisfactory performance and their re-election at AGMs in
accordance with the Articles

The services of Peter Tom are provided by a consultancy
agreerent dated 15th July 2008 with Rise Rocks Limited
The consultancy agreement may be terrminated by either
party subject to one month's notice Fees for services
provided dunng 2009 have been paid to Rise Rocks
Limited

The table below shows the dates of appointment and the
most recent re-election dates for the chairman and the
non-executive directors

Date of last
Name of Date of re-election
director appointment at an AGM
J Coleman March 2008 2008 AGM
P B Dermody Apnl 2004 2009 AGM
P E Jackson December 2005 2009 AGM
PW G Tom (note 1) February 2004 2007 AGM

note 1 Peter Torm will stand or re-elechion at the AGM to be held on
7th May 2010

Coples of the letters of appointment, the consultancy
agreement and deeds of indemmity will be available for
inspection prier to and dunng the AGM and are also
available for inspection at the Company’s registered office
during normal business hours

The remuneration of the chairman 1s determuned by the
commuttee The remuneration of non-executive directors
ts determined by the board on the recommendation
of the executive directars within the himits set out In
the Articles and on the basis of independent advice or
publicly avallable benchmarked data which takes into
consideration the level of fees paid to non-executive
directors of comparator companies The Group's policy in
respect of non-executive directors 1s to pay annua! fees
which reflect the time commutment, responsibibities and
duties placed upon them, whilst also having regard to
market practice

The chairman and non-executive directors are not
eligible to participate in the Company's LTIP, share option
schemes, annual bonus scheme, receive any payment on
termination and are not eligible to join the Company's
pension scheme They are allowed to claim reasonable out
of pocket expenses in connection with the performance of
therr duties

The fees of the non-executive directors were last reviewed
in January 2010 It was determined that they should not
be changed The current fee structure 1s shown in the
following table

Role Last reviewed Fee
Chairman January 2010 £125,000
Non-executive director January 2010 £35,000
Commuttee chairman January 2010 £5,000
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Remuneration report

In additien, a per diem rate has been agreed in the event
that the chairman’s hours exceed the expected time
commitment for the role No additional payments were
made during 2009

No additional fees are paid for attendance or being a
member of a board committee, but a fee of £5,000 15
paid for charing the audit and nsk committee and the
remuneration committee

Executive directors
The service agreements of the executive directors are
summarised in the table below

Unexpired
term of
Executive Notice period Date of contract contract

W B McGrath 12 months September 1998 Rolhng
contract

March 2001 Rolhing
contract

SM Smith 12 months

It 15 the Company's policy that executive directors
should have contracts with an indefinite term providing
for a maximum of one year’s notice in ine with the best
practice provisions set out in the Code In the event of
early termination, the directors’ contracts provide for
compensation of up to a maximum of one year's basic
salary for the notice pericd The committee does not
consider it to be in the best interests of shareholders
directors’ contracts to provide explicitly for pre-determined
compensation in the event of early termunation However,
the principle of mitigation would be applied to reduce any
compensation payable to departing directors, with each
case being taken on its own merits

The service agreements will terrminate when the director
reaches the retirement age as determined by the board,
which in normal circumstances 15 60, and are otherwise
terminable on giving 12 months notice

External appointments

The board recogmises the benefit which the Group can
obtain if the executive directors serve as non-executive
directors of other compamies Subject to review in each
case, the board's general policy 1s that each executive
director may accept one non-executive directorship with
another company from which any fees received may be
retained At present neither of the executive directors
hold any outside directorships and do not earn fees for any
other services outside employment with the Company
Shaun Srmuth has a voluntary role as a co-opted member
of the audit committee of Birringham City University

Audited information

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director, excluding share
options, LTIP awards and pensicns during the year ended
31st December 2009 1s set out intable 2 on page 40 There
were no taxable expenses in 2008 or 2009 for any of the
directors

Penston arrangements

The executive directors are members of the Group's UK
pension scheme on a defined benefit basis of pension
provision Table 3 on page 40 shows the directors’ accrued
pensions under the scheme and the corresponding transfer
values calculated 1n a manner consistent with regulations
7 to 7E of the Occupational Pensions Scheme (Transfer
Values) Regulations 1996

Directors’ share options

Directors’ emoluments disclosed in table 2 on page 40 do
not nclude any value in relation to the options to acquire
ordinary shares in the Company granted to or held by the
directors

The interests of directors 1n options held under the LTiP
(which lapsed in 2009} and the Sharesave Plan at the
beginning and end of the financial year are shown in table

4 on page 41

e

Chairman of 4ieremuneralion commuttes
12th March 2010
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Table 2

Salary in lteu of Benefits in

Salary/  pension above kind and Annual 2009 2008

fees earnings cap cash benefits bonus Total Total

£000 £C00 £000 £000 £000 £00C0

W B McGrath 487 80 26 97 690 595
S M Smith 280 35 23 56 394 339
J Coleman (appointed March 2008) 125 - - - 125 102
P 8 Dermody 40 - - - 40 40
PE Jackson 35 - - - 35 35
H M Mahy (resigned December 2009) 35 - - - 35 35
P W G Tom (note 1) 40 - - - 40 40
V Cocker (resigned May 2008} - - - - - 40
Total 1,042 15 49 153 1,359 1,226

note 1 Relates to consultancy fees in respect of quahfying services to the Company paid under a consultancy agreement

Table 3
Transfer value
Increase of increase
n transfer in accrued
Transfer value value over Increase  pension over
Increase  Transfer value of accrued  theyear, net tnaccrued  the year, net
Accrued in accrued of accrued pension at of director's  pension over of director's
pensionat 31st  pension over pensionat3ist 31st Dec 2009 contributions the year (net of  contributions
Dec 2009 the year Dec 2008 (note 1) (note 2) nflation) (note 3)
£000 pa £000 pa £000 £000 £000 £000 pa £000
W B McGrath 48 6 N7 651 330 4 43
S M Smith 52 5 34 640 295 3 25

The transfer values calcutated have been venfied by a consulling actuary
note 1 Transfer values at 31st December 2009 were calculated using a revised Trustee's transfer value basis effective from st January 2009

note 2 The increase in transter values over the year (net of director s contributions) reflects the companison of the transfer value of the accrued
pensions at the start and end of the peniod Transfer values are not cash payments due to the indwidual concerned but are the present acluanal
value of the directors’ pension benefits payable in the future They are therefore discounted amounts which take into account market conditions
and may change materially from year to year, even though no additional benefits were promised during the year

The increase in transfer values over the year largely anises irom the effect of using the revised transier value basis at 31st December 2009 referred
to in note 1 above The transfer value basis used at 31st December 2008 applied a2 market value adjustment based on actual equity market
conditions, whereas the transfer value basis used at 31st December 2009 applied a market value adjustment denved from a rodel of projected
equily market performance It 1s considered that the methodology underlying the revised transfer value basis 1s now the most appropniate for
calculating transfer values and the rewised basis should resuli in greater stability of transfer values in the future

If the transfer values at 31st December 2008 were restated on a basis consistent with the transfer values at 31st December 2009, the restated
transfer value in respect of Willlam McGrath's accrued pension would be £469k and the transfer value tn respect of Shaun Smith s accrued
pension would be £507k and therefore the increase in transfer value over the vear, net of director s contributions, on a restated basis would be
£178k% and £130k respectively

note 3 The transfer value of the increase in accrued pensions over the year {nel of director s contnibutions) reflects the transfer value of the
increase in the accrued pensions over the penod only
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Table 4
Sharesave
Plan
approved Long-Term Incentive
1n 2008 Plan approved in 1999
W B McGrath
At 15t January 2009 8014 28,149 33922 121,262 85,391
Lapsed 8th May - - (33522) - -
At 31st December 2009 8,014 28,149 - 121,262 85,391
S M Smith
At st January 2009 8014 - 19,486 69,656 49,051
Lapsed 8th May - - (15,486) - -
At 31st December 2009 8,014 - - 69,656 45,051
Option grant date 26 Sep 08 130ct 03 27 Apr 06 14 May 07 12 May 08
Exercisable period 01Dec13 13 0ct 06 27 Apr 09 14 May 10 12 May 1
to to to to to
31May14 12 Octi3 26 Apr16 13 May 17 11 May 18

The exercise price per share in respect of options granted under the Sharesave Plan in 2008 s 209 pence per share Subject to performance

conditions, the LTIP consists of a rght to acquire shares under option at an aggregate price of £1 per award
Qualifying performance conditions for the LTIP are shown in note 23 to the accounts

No options were exercised by the directors during the year and therefore no gains were made dunng 2009 (2008 £56,422)

The mid-market price of ordinary shares on 315t December 2009 was 120 0 pence and the highest and lowest mid-market prices during the

financial year were 162 O pence and 55 25 pence respectively

1340434 NOILVHINNWIY
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2009 2008
Notes £m £m
Revenue 3&4 2450 2794
Net operating costs 4 {246 5) (268 3}
Group operating {loss)/profit 4 s 11
Net pension credit 6 54 54
Non-recurring cost (36 B3
Profit before net finance income and income tax 03 nz
Finance income " 48
Finance costs (09) (16)
Profit before income tax 05 144
Income tax expense 8 - 27
Profit for year 0s n7
Profit attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 17 124
Minority shareholders az (o))}
Profit for year 05 n7
Earnings per share n p p
Basic 25 14 4
Diluted 25 14 4
Dridend per share 10 p p
Interim paid - 490
Final proposed - -
Total ordinary dividend - 40
Cash return 10 - 1210

Al operations are continuing

Notes to the accounts are on pages 48 to 78
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2009 2008
Notes £m £m
Profit for year 05 n7z
Exchange adjustments on hedge of net investments 16 32
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (93) 230
Actuanal losses on defined benefit penston schemes 6 104 5) (287)
Deferred tax on actuanal losses 21 293 79
Other comprehensive losses for the year (829) Qo)
Total comprehensive (losses)/income for the year (824) 107
Attributable 1o
Equity holders of the parent {811) 1o
Minonty interests a3 (03)
Total comprehensive (losses)/income for the year (824) 107

Notes to the accounts are on pages 48 to 78
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Consolidated balance sheet
AS AT 31ST DECEMBER

2009 2008
Non-current assets Notes £Em £m
Goodwill 12 669 709
Intangible assets 13 232 240
Property, plant and equipment 14 508 587
Retirement benefit surplus 6 - 587
Deferred tax assets 21 217 55
1626 2178
Current assets
Inventortes 15 460 635
Trade and other receivables 16 nz 369
Current tax assets 18 21
Cash and cash equivalents 18 450 429
1245 148 4
Assets held for sale 14 31 19
Total assets 2902 3681
Current liabilities
Borrowings 18 3} ©n
Trade and other payables 17 (632} (66 8)
Current tax habilties (84} Mme)
Current provisions 20 (24) 43
{853) (924)
Net current assets 392 560
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 18 Q57 (274)
Retirement benefit obligation 6 (40 5) a2
Deferred tax lrabihties 21 61N 219
Provisions 20 (83 87N
(7086) (59 2)
Total habilties (1559 (1516)
Net assets 1343 2165
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 22 325 325
Share premium account 296 296
Other reserves 25 858 955
Retained (losses)/earnings 41 571
Equity attributabtle to equity holders of the parent 1338 2147
Minority interest 05 18
Total equity 1343 2165
The accounts on pages 42 to 78 were approved by the board of directors on 12th March 2010 and were signed on its behalf
by PR Shern Sudch-
W B McGrath Chief Executive S M Srmuth Finance Director

Notes to the accounts are on pages 48 to 78
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2009 2008
Cash flows from operating activitres Notes £m £m
Profit before income tax 05 144
Reconcihation of profit before income tax to net cashilows
Net finance income 02) 32
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14 71 68
Impairment of assets held for sale o8 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 13 16 13
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 01 03
Share based payments expense 02 -
Decrease/(increase) ininventories 153 3e)
Decrease In receivables 56 54
Increase/(decrease) in payables 20 107}
{Decreasel)/increase in provisions a3) 05
Movement in pensions (64) 67
Cash generated from operating activities 253 45
Finance income il 50
Finance costs o9 Qe
Tax receipt/(payment) 40 27
Net cash generated from operating activities 295 52
Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal proceeds from sale of subsidiaries less costs 9 (04) 24)
Purchase of Mercury 24 (05) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (62) (102)
Expenditure on intangibles 13 19) (33
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 05
Net cash used ininvesting activities (90) as54)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dmdends paid and cash returned to shareholders 10 - (1512)
Net proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary share capital and cost of share consolidation - (0N
Repayment of borrowings (205) (15)
New bank loans raised 26 227
Net cash used in financing activities 79) Q30D
Eftects of exchange rate changes (05) 17
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 21 (1386)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 429 1815
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18a 450 429

Notes to the accounts are on pages 48 to 78
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Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share Other
capital Share reserves Retained Minority Total
(note 22)  premum (note 25) earnings Total interests equity
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m
At 1st January 200% 325 296 955 571 2147 18 2165
Comprehensive ncome
Profit/(loss) for the year - - - 17 17 a2 05
Other comprehensive
(losses)/income
Exchange adstments on
hedge of net investments - - 16 - 16 - 16
Exchange differences
on translation of foreign
operations - - S - o2 (O (23)
Actuarial losses on defined
benefit pension schemes - - - (104 5) o4 s) - (104 5)
Deferred tax on actuarial
losses - - - 293 293 - 293
Total comprehensive losses
for the year to 31st December
2009 - - (76) (735) a1 a3 (824)
Transfer between reserves - - Q2n 21 - - -
Share based payments - - - 02 02 - 02
At 31st December 2009 325 296 858 41 1338 05 1343

The cumulative amount of goodwill taken direct to reserves since 1985 in respect of businesses that were members of the

Group at 31st December 2009 15 £6 3m (2008 £6 3m)

On the 30th December 2009 the minority interest in Grange SA decreased from 25% to 5%

For each currency, exchange differences arising from the transkation of foreign currency borrowings used to finance foreign
currency investments have been offset as reserves movements against exchange differences ansing on the retranslation
of the net investment in that currency [n total, net exchange gains on foreign currency barrowings of £1 6m (2008 losses

£3 2m) have been taken to reserves

46 AGA Rangemaster Group plc Annual Report & Accounis 2009




Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share Other
capital Share reserves Retained Minonity Total
(note 22)  premium {note 25)  earnings Total interests equity
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m
At 1st January 2008 324 68 8 N 2167 3550 21 3571
Comprehensive income
Profit/(loss) for the year - - - 124 124 (07 17
Other comprehensive
(losses)/income
Exchange adjustments on
hedge of net investments - - (32 - 32 - 32
Exchange differences
on translation of foreign
operations - - 226 - 226 04 230
Actuanal losses on defined
benefit pension schemes - - - (287 (287) - (287
Deferred tax on actuanal
losses - - - 79 79 - 79
Total comprehensive income/
(losses) for the year to 31st
December 2008 - - 194 (84) no 03 107
Dwidends and cash return - - - (1512) (151 2) - (1512)
Shares 1ssued 01 02 - - 03 - 03
Costs associated with share
consolidation - (04) - - (04) - (04}
Transfer between reserves - (390) 390 - - - -
At 315t December 2008 325 296 o5 5 571 2147 18 2165

Notes to the accounts are on pages 48 to 78
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1. Corporate information

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31st December 2009 were authonsed for
1ssue In accordance with a resolution of the diectors on
11th March 2010

The Group is & public hmited company incorporated and
domiciled in the UK whose shares are publicly traded on
the London Stock Exchange

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture
and sale of range cookers and related home fashions
product

2 Accounting policies

Bas:s of accounting

The Group financial statements presented inthis document
have been preparedonthe basis of all International Financial
Reporting Standards ('IFRS), including International
Accounting  Standards  (IAS")  and International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC')
interpretations 1ssued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (‘IASB") and its commitiees, and as
interpreted by any regulatory bodies applicable to the
Group published by 31st December 2009 and adopted by
the European Union The financial statements have also
been prepared m accordance with the Companies Act
2006 applicable to compames reporting under IFRS

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
IFRS requires the use of certain accounting estrmates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and habilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported revenues and expenses during the year
Although these estimates are based on management's best
knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results
ultimately may differ from those estimates It also requires
management to exercise its jJudgement In the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies The key sources
of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of
causing material adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and habilities within the next financial year are the
measurement of defined benefit pension obligations, see
note 6 and the provision for taxes, see current and deferred
tax accounting policy, for further details

The following standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards have been adopted for the first time
in the Group’s annual report

* JAS 1Presentation of Finanaial Statements (revised)

The revised standard separates owner and non-owner
changes in equity The consolidated statement of changes
in equity 1s a pnmary siatement and includes details of
transactions with owners and with non-owners Inaddition,

the standard introduces the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income n place of the statement of
recogmsed income and expense This presents all non-
owner items of recogmised income and expense, either
In one single statement, or 1in two hnked statements The
Group has elected to present two statements

* IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

This interpretation clanfies where goods and services
are sold together with a customer loyalty incentive that
the arrangement should be accounted for as a sale of
two components - the goods/services and the incentive
Amounts due from the customer should be allocated
between these two elements in proportion to their fair
values and recogrused as revenue at different times The
adoption of this interpretation did not have any matenal
impact on the fmancial position or performance of the
Group

* IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

This interpretation provides guidance on the accounting
for a hedge of a net investment It provides guidance on
identifying the foreign currency nisks that qualify for hedge
accounting in the hedge of a net investment, where within
the Groupthe hedging instruments can be held inthe hedge
of a net investment and how an entity should determine
the amount of foreign currency gain or loss, relating to
both the net investment and the hedging instrument, to
be recycled on disposal of the net investment The Group
has elected to recycle the gain or loss that anses from the
direct method of consolidation, which ts the method the
Group uses to complete its consolidation As the Group did
not dispose of any net investment it has no impact on the
financial position or results

The adoption of the following amendments resulted in
changes to accounting policies which either had no or no
material impact on the financial position or performance or
disclosures of the Group

* 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Assets and habilities classified as held for trading in
accordance with |1AS 39 Financial Instruments Recegnition
and Measurement are not automatically classified as
current in the balance sheet

= 1A516 Property, Plant and Equipment

The term 'net selling price’ has been replaced with fair
value less costs to sell’

* |AS 38 Intangible Assets

Expenditure on advertising and promotional actvities 1s
recognised as an expense when the Group either has a
right to access the goods or has received the service
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
* IFRS 7 Financial Instruments - Disclosures

The amendment requires enhanced disclosures about farr
value measurement and liquidity nsk In particular, the
amendment requires chsclosure of fair value measurements
by level of a far value measurement hierarchy

+  JAS 23 Borrowing Costs (revised)

This revision requires capitalisation of borrowing costs that
are directly atinbutable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset The Group's previous
policy was to expense borrowing costs as they were
incurred In accordance with the transitional provistons of
the amended 1AS 23, the Group has adopted the standard
on a prospective basis However, there were no such
borrowing costs in 2009

* 1AS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation and IAS 1
Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arnising
on Liguidation

The standards have been amended to allow a limited scope
exception for puttable financial instruments to be classified
as equity if they fulfil a number of specified critena

Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to
existing standards have been published that are mandatory
for the Group's future accounting penods but which the
Group has not early adopted The relevant ones effective
for the year ended 31st December 2010 are set out below

* 1AS 27 (revised) Consohdated and Separate Financial
Statements

* 1AS 38 (amendments) Intangible Assets

* |AS 39 Financial Instruments Recogmition and
Measurement

* IFRS 1 (amended)/IAS 27 (amended} Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate

= {FRS 2 Share-based Payments - Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions

* |FRS 3 (revised) Business Combinations

= IFRS 5 (amendment) Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations

* |FRIC 17 Distributions on Non-cash Assets to Owners
* |FRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

The Group has considered the above standards,
nterpretations and amendments The Group intends to
comply with these from the effective date The directors
anticipate that the adoption of these standards and
interpretations in future periods will have no material

LA,

impact on the financial statements A summary of the
principal Group IFRS accounting pohicies 1s set out below

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated income statement and balance sheet
include the accounts of the parent Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to the end of the finanoial year and
include the results of subsidianes and businesses acquired
and sold during the year from or up to their effective date
of acquisition or sale The Group defines a subsidiary as an
entity that the Group has the power to control All intra-
group balances and transactions, including unrealised
profits ansing from ntra-group transactions, are
ebminated in full Unrealised losses are eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred

Minority nterests represent the proportion of profit ar
loss and net assets that are not held by the Group and
are presented separately in the consolidated income
statement and within equity in the consolidated balance
sheet, separately from the parent shareholders’ equity

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method Shares 1ssued as consideration for
the acquisition of companies have a farr value attributed
to them, which are normally their market value at the date
of acquisition Net assets acquired are consolidated at a
fair value to the Group at the date of acquisition Changes
to those assets and habilities, and the resulting gains and
losses that anse after the Group has gained control of the
subsidiary, are credited and charged to the post-acquisition
income statement or the statement of comprehensive
income/losses, where appropriate On the acquisition of
minority interests the difference between cost and the
minonty interest 15 taken to goodwill

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions prior to 1998 was wntten off
toreserves From 1998, goodwill, being the difference between
the fair value of the purchase consideration and the fair value
of the assets acquired, was capitalised in the balance sheet as
goodwili and until 31st December 2003 was amortised on a
straight line basis over its estimated usefu! life, not exceeding
20 years

Segmental reporting
Anoperatingsegment isdescribedn [FRS 8 as a component
of an entity that engages in business activities from which
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating
results are regularly reviewed by the chief executive and
his senior management team to make decisions about the
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance and for which discrete financial information
15 avallable
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

Segmental reporting (continued)

There are two operating segments, namely AGA and
Rangemaster, which meet the aggregation cnteria of IFRS 8
in full, therefore, the directors consider that there 1s only cne
reportable aggregated segment, this is consistent with the
core pnnciple that the result s to provide information that
enables users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of
the business activities in which the Group engages and the
economic environments in which it operates Aggregation 1s
based on an assessment that the operating segments have
similar economic charactenistics, products and services,
production processes, types and classes of customer and
methods used to distribute products The directors consider
the aggregated reportable segment to be the manufacture and
sale of range cookers and related home fashions product

Revenue recognition

Revenue, which excludes value added tax and intra-group
revenue, principally represents the invoiced value of goods
sold, services rendered and short-term maintenance
contracts Appropriate provisions for returns, trade
discounts and other allowances are deducted from revenue
as appropniate The Group has no barter transactions
Revenue 15 recogrised from the sale of goods when the
significant nsks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer or can be readily measured This
1s deemed to be when the goods have been dispatched or
are available for delivery

Post retirement benefits

The Group's main pension schemes are of a defined benefit
type Under IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ the employer's
portion of the current service costs, settlement gains and
curtailment gains are charged to the income statement for
these schemes, with the interest cost net of the expected
return on assets in the schemes also being credited to the
ncome statement When a settlement or a curtailment
occurs the obligation and scheme assets are remeasured
using current actuarial assumptions and the resultant gain
or loss recognised in the income statement dunng the year
in which the settlement or curtallment occurs Actuanal
gamns and losses are recognised directly in equity, i the
staterment of comprehensive iIncome and losses, and the
balance sheet reflects the schemes' surplus or deficit at
the balance sheet date The determination of the present
value of obligations and scheme assets 1s done with
sufficient regulanty that the amounts do not differ from
the amounts determined at the balance sheet date A full
valuation 1s carried out triennially using the projected und
credit method

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents
the change in present value of scheme obligations resulting
fromthe passage of time, and 1s determined by applying the
discount rate to the opening present value of the benefit
obligation, taking into account material changes in the
obligation during the year The expected return on scheme
assets 1s based on an assessment made at the beginning
of the year of long-term market returns on scheme assets,
adjusted for the effect on the fair value of scheme assets of
contributions recewved and benefits paid in the year

The defined benefit pension asset or liability in the balance
sheet comprises the total for each scheme of the present
value of the defined benefit obligation, using a discount
rate based on high quality corporate bonds, less any
past service cost not recogrnised and less the fair value of
scheme assets out of which the obligations are to be settled
directly Fair value 1s based on market price information
and in the case of quoted securities 1s the published bid
price Measurement of defined benefit obligations requires
estimation of future changes in salaries and nflation, as
well as mortality rates, and the seilection of a suitable
discount rate

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged to
the income statement as they become payable

Intangible assets

Expenditure relating to clearly defined and tdentifiable
developrment projects 1s recognised as an intangible asset
only after the following cntena are met the project’s
technical feasibility and commercial wiability can be
demenstrated, the avalability of adequate techrical
and financial resources and an intention to complete
the project have been confirmed and the correlation
between development costs and future revenues has been
estabhshed The development costs are then amortised
on a straight line basis over the life of the project, limited
to 2 maximum of seven and a half years following
the commencement of its commercial production
Development expenditure that has not been brought into
use 5 also reviewed for impairment on an annual basis All
other research and development expenditure 1s written off
in the year in which 1f1$ incurred

Computer software licences acquired, costs associated
with the developing of software products and software that
1s not Integral to a related item of hardware, are recognised
as intangible assets and are amortised over thewr useful
lives, which 1s hmited to a maximum of five years

Development costs mainly anise from internat development
and brands are acquired separately
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles

Goedwill 1s subject to an impairment review annually or
when there are indications that the carrying value may
not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recognised
in the income statement for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount The
recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its discounted value in use For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to
a cash-generating unit {CGU) 1s taken into account when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of a unit Goodwill
ansing on acquisitions prior {0 1998 remains set off directly
against reserves even if the related investment becomes
impaired or the business is disposed of

Separable intangible assets, such as trademarks, hcences
and brands, are recognised separately from goodwill on all
acquisitions after 1st January 2004, the date of transition
to IFRS, which are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and are amortised over their estimated useful
Iife Brands identified in certain business combinations
have been assessed as having an indefinite useful fe
In reaching this assessment, account was made of therr
market-leading position in miche markets, premium image,
length of history and unchanging fashion These factors
are coupled with continuing marketing spend to maintain
the brand These brands are assessed for impairment on
an annual basis or sooner where there 15 indication of
impairment The carrying values are assessed by reference
to the net present values of forecast future cash flows For
brands, the Royalty Relief Methodology 1s used to forecast
future cash flows This 1s based on the notion of what an
independent third party would need to pay a brand owner
in order to use that brand name 1n a particular marketplace
or defined territory

Assets held for sale
Assets held for sale are valued at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell

Property, plant and equipment

Under 1AS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment’ assets are
held at cost less accumulated depreciation Assets held at
the date of transition are held at deemed cost Depreciation
1s provided on property, plant and equipment, other than
freehold land and assets in the course of construction, at
rates calculated to wnte off the cost of each asset on a
straight hine basis down to its residual value as follows

+  Freehold buldings over 50 years

n  Leasehold buildings over 50 years or the penod of the
lease whichever s less

w Plant and equipment over a period of 3 to 121/2 years

The Group annually reviews the assessment of residual
values and useful lives in accordance with 1AS 16 The
carrying value of property, plant and equipment s reviewed
for impairment 1f there are indicators that the carrying
value amount may not be recoverable

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal of an asset I1s
determined as the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset and 1s
recogmsed 1n income

Leases

Under |AS 17 ’'Leases,’ assets held under leases and hire
purchase contracts, where the Group has substantially
alt the risks and rewards of ownership, are capitalised as
owned property, plant and equipment and the obligations
relating thereto, excluding finance charges, are included
in borrowings Finance costs are charged to the income
statement over the contract term to give a constant rate of
interest on the outstanding balance Finance lease assets
held as property, plant and equipment are depreciated over
the shorter of the asset's expected useful hife and the lease
term

Payments wn respect of operating leases, net of any
incentives received, are charged in arniving at the operating
profit on a straight line basis over the period of the lease

The Grouptreats sale and operating leasebacks as disposals
and any profit or loss on the transaction 1s recogrised at
the time of the sale

Inventories

In accordance with {AS 2 ‘Inventories’ the Group's
inventories are valued at the lower of cost on a tirst in
first out basis and net realisable value Cost includes a
proportion of production overheads based on normal
levels of activity Provision 1s made for obsolete and slow
moving items

Borrowings

Obligations for loans and borrowings are recognised when
the Group becomes party to the related contracts and are
measured 1mitially at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs After mitial recognition, interest-
bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method
Gains and losses arising on the repurchase, settlement
or cancellation of habilities are recognised respectively in
finance income and finance cost
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2 Accounting pohicies (continued)

Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are classitied as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
labihty at the balance sheet date

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-termdepositsinthe balance sheet comprise
cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits with a
maturity of three months or less In certain circumstances
cash deposits with a maturity of up to six months may be
included For the purpose of the consolhdated cash flow
staterment, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in fareign currencies are imitially recorded in
the functional currency by applying the spot exchange rate
ruking at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and
habiitiesdenominatedin foreign currencies areretranslated
at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the
batance sheet date All differences are taken to the income
statement, except when hedge accounting 1s appled and
for differences on manetary assets and habilities that form
part of the Group's net investment In a foretgn operation
These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the
net investment when the deferred cumulative amount
recognised n equity relating to that particular foreign
operation is recogrused in the income statement

The assets and lhabihties of foreign operations are
transiated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date Income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rate for the month in which they
anse The main foreign currencies used are US Dollars and
Euros The year end rate of exchange used for the Euro was
113 (2008 103) and for the US Dollar was 1861 (2008
144) and the average rates were 112 (2008 126) and
156 (2008 185), respectively The resulting exchange
differences are taken directly to a separate compenent of
equity

Non-monetary items that are measured n terms of
historicat cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the wnitial transactions
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes
party to the contracts that give nse to them and are
classified as financial assets at far value through the

income statement, these include loans and receivables,
held-to-matunity investments or avallable-for-sale financial
assets, under the requirements of IAS 39

Denvative financial instruments are classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedging instruments
Assets are carned in the balance sheet at fair value with
gains or losses recognised 1n the income statement

Diwidends

Final dividends are only recognised at the point when they
are declared and approved by the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting Interim dividends are recognised
on payment

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Where appropriate, the Group uses denvative financial
instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts
and interest rate swaps to hedge its nisks associated with
foreign currency and interest rate fluctuatrons The Group
does not hold or issue denvative financial instruments for
speculative purposes

Denvative financial instruments are initially recognised
at far value on the date on which a derivative contract
ts entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value Derivatives are carned as assets when the fair value
is positive and as liabilities when the far value 1s negative

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts 1s
calculated by reference to current forward exchange rates
for contracts with similar matunty profiles The farr value
of interest rate swap contracts 1s deterrmined by reference
to market values for similar instruments

Where the crnitena are met for hedge accounting, it 1s
appled to the forward foreign exchange contracts put in
place to reduce exposure to currency denominated sales
and purchases

Where the cniteria for hedge accounting are not met, or
the Group elects not to hedge account, gains and losses on
the fair value of forward contracts are taken to the income
statement as they arise

For those derwvatives designated as hedges and for which
hedge accounting i1s desired, the hedging relationship is
documented at its inception This documentation dentifies
the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction,
the nature of the risk being hedged and how effectiveness
will be measured throughout its duration Such hedges are
expected to be highly effective at inception

For the purpose of hedge accounting, a hedge i1s classified
as

» afair value hedge, 1e a hedge of the fair value of an
asset or a hability,
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2 Accounting pelicies {continued)

* a cash flow hedge, 1e a hedge of the variability in
cash flows of a recognised asset or hability or a highly
probable forecast transaction,

* ahedge of a net investment in a foreign entity

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments that are
designated and quahfy as fair value hedges are recorded 1n
the income statement, together with any changes in the farr
value of the hedged asset or hiability that are attributable to
the hedged risk

Cash flow hedges

Changes n the far value of derivative instruments
designated as cash flow hedges such as forward foreign
exchange contracts are recognised in equity, to the extent
that the hedges are effective Any ineffective portion Is
recogmsed as a profit or loss Amounts deferred in equity
are released when the forecast hedged transaction impacts
profit and loss

Hedge of net investments in foreign entities

The Group hedges net investments in foreign entities
primartlly through currency borrowings Any gains or
losses on the translation of the borrowings are recognised
in equity As the hedge relationship 1s expected to remain
highly effective, the accounting treatment will be applied
on an ongoing basis until the Group revokes the designation
or the investment 1s disposed of

Current and deferred tax

Current tax assets and habifities are measured at the
amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted
or substantively enacted, by the reporting date, in the
countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income

Deterred income tax s provided in full, using the balance sheet
liabifity method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilties and their carrying amounts
i the consolidated financial statements However, the
deferred income tax s not accounted for, if it anses frominitial
recognition of an asset or hability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset s realised or the deferred income tax habibity
15 settled

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred income tax s provided on temporary differences
ansing on anvestments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference i1s controlled by the Group and it 1s probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future

The Group has not provided for deferred tax in relation
to temporary differences associated with undistnibuted
earnings of subsidiaries However, based on current
enacted law and on the basis that the Group 1s In a position
to controf the timing and reahsation of these temporary
differences, no matenal tax consequences are expected to
arise

Judgement is required when determining the provision for
taxes as the tax treatment of some transactions cannot
be finally determined untd a formal resclution has been
reached with the tax authorities Tax benefits are not
recognised unless 1t 1s probable that the benefit will be
obtained Tax provisions are made if it 15 expected that a
liabifity will anse The Group reviews each significant tax
hability or benefit to assess the appropniate accounting
treatment

Employee share options

IFRS 2 'Share-based Payments' requires that the cost of equnty-
settled transactions with employees 1s measured by reference
to the fair value at the date on which they are granted and
Is recogrised as an expense over the vesting pertod, which
ends on the date on which the relevant employees become
fully entitled to the award Fair value is determined by an
external valuer using an appropriate pnong model In valuing
equity-settled transactions, no account 1s taken of any service
or performance conditions (vesting conditions), other than
performance conditions linked to the price of the shares of the
Company (market conditions) Any other conditions which
are required to be met in order for an employee to become
fully entitled to an award are considered to be non-vesting
conditions Like market performance conditions, non-vesting
conditions are taken nto account in determining the grant
date fair value

No expense 15 recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting 15 conditional upon a
market vesting condition or a non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condition or non-vesting condition 15 satisfied, provided that
all other non-market vesting conditrons are satisfied

Where an equity-settled award 1s cancelled, it I1s treated as if
It had vested on the date of cancellation, and any cost not yet
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

Employee share options (continued)

recognised In the Income statement for the award 15 expensed
immediately Any compensation paid up to the far value of
the award at the cancellation or settlement date 15 deducted
from equity, with any excess over fair value being treated as
an expense In the Income statement

The measurement of this expense 1s calculated only on
options granted after 7th November 2002 Further details are
given in note 23

Provisions
Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the

years are given, where appropriate, by indwidual businesses
in the Group Following the disposal programme of previous
years certain vacant properties located n the UK remain
with the Group Full provision has been made for the residual
onerous lease commitments, together with other outgoings,
for the remaining penod of the leases The Group's other
provisions relate to the remairing costs in respect of earlier
disposals, including probable warranty and indemnity claims,
other claims and other ¢costs from third parties in relation to
divested businesses Provisions are not discounted where the
effect s not matenal

Non-recurring costs
The Group presents as non-recurring items on the face of
the income statement, those items of income and expense

obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market which, because of the non-recurring nature and expected
assessments of the time value of money and the risks mfrequency of the events giving nse to them, ment
specific to the obligation separate presentation to allow shareholders to understand
better the elements of financial performance in the year, so
as to facilitate comparison with prior periods and to assess
better trends in financial performance

Provisionis made for the estimated hability on all products still
under warranty Product warranties of between one and three

3. Segmental analysis

An operating segment 1s a component of an entity that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
Incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly rewewed by the chief executive and his senior management team
to make decisions about the resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete
financial information 1s available

There are two operating segments, namely AGA (which comprises the brands and operations of AGA, Fired Earth,
Waterford Stanley and Grange) and Rangemaster (which comprises the brands and operations of Rangemaster, AGA
Marvel, Heartland, La Cornue and Diverbimenti) The two operating segments are considered to meet the aggregation
criteria of IFRS 81n full and so the directors consider that there is only one aggregated reportable segment, therefore the
majority of the disclosures as required under IFRS 8 have already been given in these financial statements

Segment assets include property, plant and eguipment, itangibles, mventories, retirement benefit surpluses and
receivables Cash, barrowings and taxation are not included Non-current assets exclude the retrement benefit surplus
and deferred tax assets Entity wide disclosures 1n respect of revenues from external customers, total segment assets and
non-current assets are provided below

2009 2008
Total segment Non-current Total segment  Non-current
Revenue assets assets Revenue assets assets
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Urited Kingdom 1565 Nn63 690 1753 1910 736
North America 306 432 305 400 550 344
Europe 538 622 414 600 716 456
Rest of World 41 - - 41 - -
Total operations 2450 2217 1409 2794 3176 1536
Tax - 235 - - 76 -
Cash - 450 - - 429 -
Total 2450 2902 1409 2794 3681 1536
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4 Net operating costs
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2009 2008
£m £m

Revenue 2450 2794
Operating loss/(proiit) 15 Mmun
Net operating costs 2465 2683
Net operating costs
Raw matenals and consumables 934 1075
Staff costs (note 5) 726 814
Other operating charges 64 8 681
Change in inventores of fimished goods and work 1n progress 75 37
Other pperating income (05) (05
Amortssation of intangibles (note 13) 16 13
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 14) 77 68
Net operating costs 2465 268 3
Group operating (loss)/profit for the year 1s stated after charging/(crediting)

2009 2008

£m £m

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 01 03
Trade recevables impairment (note 16) - 03
Reversal of inventory write down made in previous year (note 15) an {02)
Inventory provision charged in the year (note 15) 06 09
Research and development expenditure 15 13
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 14) 71 68
Amortisation of intangibles (note 13) 16 13
Operating lease rentals payable
- plant and machinery 26 26
- property 75 60
Net exchange differences (13) vX0)]
Auditor’s remuneration
~ Group audit fees 01 01
- Audit of Company's subsidiaries 01 o1
Other fees to auditor
- Taxation services 06 07
- All other services - 02

Non-recurring cost

The £36m (2008 £53m) non-recurring cost relates to £2 8m of predominantly reorganisation and redundancy
programmes across the Group, pnimanly integration costs at AGA Rangemaster and factory rationalisation programmes
at AGA Marvel and Grange There s also £0 8m of impairment of assets now held for sale as descrnbed in note 14 In 2008
the £5 3m non-recurring cost related to reorgamsation and redundancy programmes primartly at Marvel, Rangemaster
and Waterford Stanley
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5 Employee information

Average number of employees (including directors) 2009 2008
Production 1,364 1,429
Selling and drstributton 749 773
Admirustration and support services 543 571
Total 2,656 2773
Total staff costs (including directors) 2009 2008
£m £m
Wages and salanies 631 nz
Social secunty costs 84 89
Share based payments 02 -
Other pension costs 09 08
Staff costs (note 4) 726 814
Pension credit (note 6) (54) (54)
Net staff costs 672 760

The defined benehit pension credit of £5 4m (2008 £5 4m) is included on the face of the iIncome statement

Details of directors’ compensation, share options, Long-Term Incentive Plans and pensions are set out in the audited part
of the remuneration report on pages 39 to 41

6. Pensions

The Group operates a pension scheme which cavers the majonty of UK employees Membership on a defined benefit
basis was closed in 2001 but the scheme remains open to new entrants on a defined contrnibution basis The assets are
held in trust funds separate from the Group's assets although they are included in the Group's balance sheet The other
defined benefit schemes operating within the Group are the Aman plc Pension and Life Assurance Plan i the UK and the
Waterford Stanley pension schemes in Ireland Vanous defined contribution schemes exist across the Group and the total
contnbutions in the year were £0 9m (2008 £0 8m) which are included under staff costs in note 5

The latest full valuation of the main UK scheme was carried out by Watson Wyatt Limited, independent consulting
actuanies, as at 31st December 2005 using the projected unit credit method The valuation as at 31st December 2008
15 currently neaning completion Defined benefit scheme contnibutions of £12m {2008 £12m) based on pensionable
salaries were made during the year ended 31st December 2009 Contrnibutions of £01m {2008 £01m) were owed to
the scheme at 31st December 2009 Contributions for 2010 under the main UK scheme will be 55% (2009 55%) and
for all members accruing benefits on a final salary basis with the exception of six members of the former 1570 scheme
who accrue benefits at 27 4% (2009 274%) of pensionable salaries Normal Company contributions of £1 3m and £2m
additional contributions are expected to be paid to this scheme during 2010 A curtaiment gain of around £15m, subject to
review by the consulting actuaries, 1s also expected in 2010 in respect of the freezing of the pensionable salaries for those
members whose pensionable salanes were not frozen in 2009

The financial assumptions used to calculate the defined benefit schemes’ habilities under 1AS 19 were

Waterford Waterford

UK Stanley UK Stanley

Schemes Schemes Schemes Schemes

2009 2009 2008 2008

Rate of iIncrease in pensionable salares 40% 30% 29% 30%
Rate of increase of pensions m payment 23-36% 20% 20-32% 20%
Discount rate S 7% 53% 6 4% 6 0%
Inflation rate 35% 20% 24% 20%
Expected rate of return on schemes’ assets 6 3% 60% 6 4% 58%
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6 Pensions (continued)

The overall expected rate of return on assets s the average of the best estimate for the expected long-term rate of return
for each of the major asset classes weighted according to the percentage allocation of the aggregated assets to each of
the asset classes at the reporting date

The demographic assumptions used include rates for mortality which, for example, generally lead to an average projected
hfe expectancy of 18 9 (2008 18 1) years for male members currently aged 65 and of 20 4 (2008 12 2) years from age 65
for male members currently aged 50

Sensitivities

The value of scheme assets 1s sensitive to market conditions, particularly equity values Changes in assumptions used for
determining retirement benefit costs and obhgations may have a matenial impact on the income staterment and the balance
sheet The man assumptions are the discount rate, the rate of inflation and the assumed mortalty rate The following table
provides an estimate of the potential impact on the principal pension schemes of changing each of these variables

Higher/(lower) Increase/ (decrease)
pension credit in habihties
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m Em £m
Discount rate - 01% decrease (on - 122 91
- 01% increase - o1 (19) (90)
Inflation rate - 01% decrease 06 06 (96) (6M
- 01% increase 086) (05) 96 61
Mortality rate - one year increase in hie expectancy 23 23 368 299
The assets and obligations of the aggregated schemes
2009 2008
£m £m
Equities 2486 1977
Bonds 3769 3644
Property 766 757
Other 39 172
Fair value of schemes’ assets 716 0 6550
Present value of funded cbhgation (756 5) (5975)
(Deficit)/surplus in the schemes (40 5) 575
Balance sheet presentation
Retirement benefit surplus - 587
Retirement benefit obligation (40 5) 02)
(Deficit) /surplus in the schemes (405) 575

Included above are assets with a market value of £51m (2008 £4 6m) and a deficit of £1 2m (2008 £1 2m) in respect of
overseas schemes The foreign exchange impact on the overseas schemes s £0 1m
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6 Pensions (continued)

2009 2008
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows Em £Em
Current service cost 23 35
Curtarlment gain (38) -
Expected return on pension schemes’ assets (40 8) (48 3)
Interest cost on pension schemes’ labilities 369 394
Net pension credit included in income statement (54) (54)

The curtailment gain relates to the freezing of pensionable salanes for certain members of the main UK scheme in the year

ended 31st December 2009

History of expertence gains and losses

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£m £m £m £m £m

Fair value of schemes’ assets 7160 6550 7769 784 6 7506
Present value of funded obhgation (756 5 (5975) (6973) (760 2) (768 8)
(Deficit) /surplus in the schemes (40 5) 575 796 244 (18 2)
Experience (loss)/gain on schemes’ liabilities Gn 20 153 24 (78)

Experience gam/(loss) on schemes’ assets 573 (1370 (312) 146 572

Movement in surplus of the aggregated schermes during the year 2009 2008

£m £m

Surplus of the schemes at 1st January 575 796
Exchange (01N on

MNet pension credit 54 54

Company contributions 12 13
Actuanal loss (104 5) 287

(Deficit) /surplus of the schemes at 31st December (40 5) 575

The cumulative amount recognised in the statement of comprehensive iIncome / losses since st January 200415 £718m

loss (2008 £32 7m income)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obhgation are as follows 2009 2008
£m £m
Present value of obhgation at 1st January 5975 6973
Interest costs 369 394
Current service cost 23 35
Member contributions 06 07
Benefit payments (including lump sums on retirement) (388 (360
Curtailments (38) -
Increase/(reduction) on change of actuanal assumptions 1619 (108 3)
Other adjustments 0n 0%
Present value of obligation at 31st December 7565 5975
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6 Pensions (continued)

Changes in the fair value of the schemes’ assets are as follows 2009 2008
£m £m

Fatr value of schemes’ assets at 1st January 6550 7769
Benefit payments (including lump sums on retirement} (38 8) (G360)
Company contributions 12 13
Member contributions 06 07
Expected return on schemes’ assets 408 483
Expenience gain/(loss) 573 Q370)
Other adjustments won 08
Fair value of schemes’ assets at 31st December 60 6550
The actual gain on the schemes’ assets was £98 1m (2008 loss £88 7m)
7. Netfinance income

2009 2008
Finance income £m £m
Bank interest 03 48
Interest on repayment of tax 08 -
Total finance income 1 48
Finance costs £m £m
Bank borrowings (09 Q4
Cther borrowings - (02)
Total finance costs ((o3))] (16)
Net finance tncome 02 32
8 Incometax

2009 2008
United Kingdom corporation tax based on a rate of 28 0% (2008 28 5%) £m £m
Current tax on income for year e 15
Adjustrments in respect of prior years 35 26
Urited Kingdom corporation tax 19 41
Overseas current 1ax on income for year 11 14
Total current tax charge 30 55
United Kingdom deferred tax credit (08 (16)
Overseas deferred tax credit in year 22 a2
Total deferred tax credit (30} (28)
Total Unuted Kingdom tax 1 25
Total averseas tax (11 02
Total income tax - 27

Deferred tax on items taken direct to reserves was a credit of £29 3m (2008 credit £75m)
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B Income tax (continued)
The total tax assessed for the year 1s lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK as explained below

2009 2008
£m £m
Profit before income tax 05s 144
Profit multiphed by the standard rate of corporation tax i the UK of 28 0% (2008 28 5%) 01 417
Effects of
- non-deductible expenses - n
- adjustment to tax charge in respect of prior years 35 26
- lower rates of tax on overseas earnings (36) (Gn
Total tax charge for the year - 27

9, Discontinued operations
During the year further proceeds of £0 9m (2008 £4 8m) were received in respect of the Focdservice disposat and costs
of £13m (2008 £72m) were paid during the year, leaving a net outflow of £0 4m (2008 £2 4m}

10. Dividends and cash return

2009 2008

£m £m

Nil final dividend paid for the year ended 31st December 2008 (2007 765 pence per share) - 87
Nilinterim dividend paid (2008 4 O pence per share} - 28
Nil return of cash (2008 £1 21 per share) - 1367
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity shareholders in the year - 1512

The directors are not recommending a final devidend in respect of the financial year ended 31st December 2009 (2008
il

There was no actual dvidend (ordinary or special} paid or cash returned in the year (2008 132 65 pence per share)
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1 Earmings per share

The basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the earnings attnibutable to equity shareholders of the parent by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ardinary shares in 1ssue Is adjusted to assume conversion
of all potential dilutive ordinary shares The Group has two classes of dilutive potential shares - the share options granted
to employees and the Long-Term Incentive Plan In 2009 the share options granted to employees have been treated as

contingently 1ssuable

The earnings and weaighted average number of shares are set out below

2009 2008
Earnings for the purpose of the basic and diluted EPS £m £m
Profil after tax 05 n7
Minority interests 12 07
Profit attributable te equity shareholders - for basic and diluted EPS 17 124
Weighted average number of shares in 1ssue million rmillion
For basic EPS calculation 692 859
Chlutive effect of share options and Long-Term Incentive Plan - 02z
For diluted EPS calculation 692 861
Earnings per share p p
Basic 25 144
Dhluted 25 144
12. Goodwill
2009 2008
£m £m
Cost
At 1st fanuary 709 601
Exchange adjustment {4 0) 108
At 315t December 669 709

The combined operations of AGA, Fired Earth, Waterford Stanley and Grange form one CGU with the combined operations
of Rangemaster, AGA Marvel, Heartland, La Cornue and Divertiment: forming a second CGU Given the shared resource
and integration within these two business combinations they are deemed to be the smallest identifiable group of assets

that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of each other

Goodwill at 31st December 200915 allocated over the two cash generating units as follows AGA £38 8m {2008 £411m)

and Rangemaster £28 1m (2008 £29 8m)
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12 Goodwill (continued)

For goodwill impairment testing future cash flows are estimated based on the board approved, budgeted, nsk adjusted
trading cash flows for both of the relevant CGUs for the next year and 2% (2008 2%) growth, thereafter, based on
the current external inflation forecasts for the medium-term The operating cash flows included within the impairment
reviews reflect management's current expectations of future performance incorporating jJudgements around the current
economic chimate and reflecting cost savings made as a result of the non-recurning costs incurred during the year The
future cash flows are discounted at the relevant risk adjusted weighted average cost of capital (WACC") apphcable to that
particular CGU The Group WACC of 8 4% (2008 879%) has been adjusted to reflect an independent capital structure
which incorporates management's estimate of the incremental cost of further borrowing as required by |1AS 36 In addition,
the Group has nisk adjusted the discount rate, by vtihsing a cautious company beta and equity risk premium

A reasonable change in key assumptians, on which management has based its determination of the recoverable amount,
does not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount

13 Intangible assets

Computer Development
software Brands costs Other Total
£m £m £Em £m £m

Cost
At 1st January 2009 46 146 120 05 37
Exchange adjustment N 12) (05) - 8
Purchase of Mercury (note 24) - 02 - 03 05
Additions - internally generated - - 15 - 15
Additions - externally acquired 02 - 02 - 04
Disposals wn - - - on
At 31st December 2009 46 136 132 08 322
Amortisation
At 1st January 2009 33 - 42 02 77
Exchange adjustment on - on - (02)
Disposals on - - - on
Charge for the year 04 - 12 - 16
At 31st December 2009 35 - 53 02 90
Net book value at 31st December 2009 n 136 79 06 232
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13 Intangible assets (continued)

Computer Development
software Brands costs Other Total
£m £m £m £m Em

Cost
At 1st January 2008 38 n2 87 c4 241
Exchange adjustment 03 36 08 01 48
Addittons - internally generated 08 - 25 - 33
Disposals 03 oD - - (0 5)
At 31st December 2008 46 146 120 05 N7
Amortisation
At 1st January 2008 29 - 31 o1 61
Exchange adjustment 03 - 02 - G5
isposals (03} - - o1 (0 2)
Charge for the year 04 - 09 - 13
At 3ist December 2008 33 - 42 02 77
Net book value at 31st December 2008 13 146 78 03 240

items included in the ‘other’ category include patents and customer lists acquired

Brands and other intangibles are considered to have an indefimite life and are subject to impairment tests Computer

software and development costs are amortised and the amortisation charged directly to the income statement

For brands imparrment testing the Royalty Relief Methodology ts used to forecast future cash flows Cash flows are
estimated using an imputed royalty rate applied to budgeted, board approved, risk adjusted revenue for the next year
and 2% growth, thereafter, based on the current external inflation forecasts for the medium-term Future cash Hows are
discounted at the relevant nisk adjusted weighted average cost of capital applicable to that particular brand The Group
WACC has been adjusted to reflect an independent capital structure which incorporates management's estimate of the
incremental cost of further borrowing as required by I1AS 36 In addition, the Group has risk adjusted the discount rate
by utihsing a cautious company beta and equity nisk premium For 2009 testing these were in the range 7 4% to 8 4%
(2008 6 8% to 8 7%) imputed royalty rates used in the cash flow forecasts for brands are in the range 29% to 35%
Management consider the appropriateness of the royalty rates used on an annual basis
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14 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold and Plant,
long leasehold  machinery Assets n
land and and course of
buldings  equipment construchion Total
£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1st January 2009 356 902 05 126 3
Exchange adjustment a7 aa) n (36)
Capital expenditure 03 29 02 34
Impairment of assets transferred to held for sale (05) - - (05)
Transfer to assets held for sale a7 - - an
Disposals (04) a9 - (23)
Reclassification - 01 on -
At 31st December 2009 316 895 05 1216
Depreciation
At ist January 2009 98 578 - 676
Exchange adjustment (04) an - (15)
Charge for the year 09 62 - 71
Transfer to assets held for sale 2 - - (02)
Disposals (04 a8 - (22)
At 31st December 2009 97 611 - 708
Net book value at 315t December 2009 29 284 05 508

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes £01m {2008 £01m) of assets held under finance leases The net book
value of these assets was £0 1m (2008 £mil} All leases have been reviewed throughout the year and are capitalised where

appropnate

Assets held for sale

Following the move of the head office to Leamington Spa the former head office property s surplus to requirements and 1s
being marketed for sale and has been transferred to assets held for sale during the year at a fair value of £17m after being

imparred by £0 5m

The Marvel site in Richmond, Indiana, USA, which was held for sale in 2008 has been impaired by £0 3m to a fair value of
£14m Due to turbulent market conditions in the local property market this property remained unscld in 2009 However,
it continues to be actively marketed and we believe a sale can be agreed durning the year
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14 Property, plant and equipment {(continued)

Freehold and Plant,
long leaseheld machinery Assets in
land and and course of
buildings equipment construction Total
£m £m £m £m

Cost
At ist January 2008 285 828 10 123
Exchange adjustment 25 53 02 80
Capital expenditure 67 60 03 130
Transfer to assets held for sale 20) - - (20}
Disposals 04 (46) - (50)
Reclassification 03 a7 a0 -
Ai 31st December 2008 356 202 05 126 3
Depreciation
Al st fanuary 2008 82 524 - 606
Exchange adjustment 11 37 - 48
Charge for the year 09 59 - 68
Transfer to assets held for sale n - - oD
Disposals {03) 4 2) - 45)
At 315t December 2008 98 578 - 676
Net book value at 31st December 2008 258 324 05 587

Some properties have been valued using previously revalued amounts as the deemed cost, no adjustment to the carrying
amount as previously recorded has been made

15. Inventories

2009 2008

£m £m

Raw materials and consumables 95 140
Work in progress 70 90
Finished goods 295 405
Total inventortes 460 635

The Group expensed £100 9m of inventones dunng the year (2008 £111 2m) The Group charged £0 6m to inventory
provistons in the year (2008 £0 9m) The Group reversed £11m of the inventory provision in the year that was subsequently
not required (2008 £0 2m) The Group did not hold any inventories pledged as security for iabilities (2008 £nil)

AGA Rangemaster Group plc Annuzl Repert & Accounts 2009

SLINNOJDV IHL OL SILON

65




16 Trade and other receivables

2009 2008
£m £m

Amounts falling due within ane year
Trade receivables 238 297
Less prowision for impairment of receivables (05) (0 5)
Trade receivables - net 233 292
Other recervables 27 35
Prepayments and accrued income 48 60
Total receivables falling due within one year 308 387
Amounts falling due after one year
Other recervables co9 12
Total receivables N7 389

Trade and other recevables are imtially recorded at fair value and thereafter amortised at an effective interest rate The
effective interest rate used for calculating the far value of non-current receivables was 5 7% (2008 6 4%)

The Group provides for trade recevables on estimated irrecoverabfe amounts from the sale of goods based on the age of
debt, past default expenence and any other information which comes to light which suggests that the recoverable amount
may be impaired There 1s a Group-wide credit insurance policy in which the main operating units 1n the UK participate
This covers 90% of individual debts in these units up to specific insured hmits

The Group uses external agencies to credit score new customers where appropriate to assess therr credit quality and
define an imnitial credst imit Limits and credit scoring are reviewed as necessary Aged debt reports are reviewed by local
management on a regular basis with ‘debt at sk’ forms being formally submitted te Group on a menthly basis

In determiming the recoverability of a trade recevable the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
recevable from the date the Group first traded with that company Credit risk s mitigated by the relatively large customer
base

Included in trade receivables are balances of £4 6m (2008 £7 8m) which are past due at the reporting date for which the
Group has not prowided as there has not been a sigrificant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable

2009 2008
Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables £m £m
30-60 days 29 49
60-90 days 07 16
90-120 days o4 07
120+ days 06 06
Total recevables 46 78
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16 Trade and other receivables (continued)

2009 2008
Movement in the provision for impairment of recevables £m £m
Balance at 1st January 05 08
Impairment losses recogmised 01 o
Amounts previously impaired recovered on (04)
Balance at 31st December 05 05

2009 2008
Ageing of impaired trade recevables £m £m
60-90 days o 01
90-120 days 01 01
120+ days 03 03
Balance at 31st December 05 05
17 Trade and other payables

2009 2008

£m £m

Current trade and other payables
Trade payables 355 397
Payments on account 1" 08
Social secunty 39 39
Accruals and deferred income 141 155
Other payables 86 69
Total current operating payables 632 66 8
18. Cash and borrowings
a) Cash and cash equivalents

2009 2008

£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 01 -
Short-term bank deposits 449 429
Cash and cash equivalents 450 429

Included in cash and cash equivalents was cash held for unctaimed dividends of £0 5m (2008 £05m)

The Group's cash balance of £45 Om includes £22 5m, which 15 collateralised against a bank guarantee that the Group has
provided to the AGA Rangemaster Group Pension Scheme

The short-term bank deposits have a weighted average matunty of under one month (2008 four months) with an effective
interest rate of 0 3% (2008 18%)

The fair value of cash and short-term deposits 1s £45 0m (2008 £429m)
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18 Cash and borrowings (continued)

b) Financial liabilities - borrowings

2009 2008
Current £m £m
Bank borrowings 13 97
Current borrowings 13 97

2009 2008
Non-current £Em £m
Non-current obligatiens under finance teases 01 -
Bank borrowings 156 274
Non-current borrowings 157 274

The non-current obhigations under finance leases are due for repayment after one year but not more than five years

The Group's bank borrowings are pnmarily loan advances denominated in a number of currencies and interest 1s based on
LIBOR or foreign equivalents Bank borrowings have been classified as current and non-current habilities with reference to
the final matunty date of the facility agreements

Interest rate 2009 2008
Bank borrowings comprise the following basis £m £m
Unsecured bank loans - current Floating 13 97
Unsecured bank loans - non-current Floating 152 269
Other securad loans 2018 Floating 04 05
Total bank borrowings 169 371

Included in the £15 2m non-current unsecured bank loans are currency denominated loan advances from committed
revolving credit facilities, which bear interest rates based on LIBOR and margins ranging between 0 375% and 0 60%

19. Financial instruments

Capital management

The Group's capital comprises the equity attnbutable to the equity holders of the parent The Group's policy 1s to maintaina
strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain the future development of the
business The Group monitors the demographic spread of its shareholders and employees are encouraged to hold shares
in the Company The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in ight of changes in economic
conditions To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or 1ssue new shares The Group also has bank facilities in place to fund the business These are
discussed in more detail under hquidity risk below

The central treasury function sets out the treasury policy including guidelines for managing interest rate and cash flow rate
nsk, credit and price risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity nsk as discussed below The objective of the treasury policy
15 to manage the Group’s financial risk and to ensure that adequate financial resources are available for the development
of the Group
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19 financial mstruments {continued)

Interest rate and cash flow risk

The Group 1s exposed to a number of global interest rates - notably the UK, Eurczone and US rates Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which 1s partially offset by cash held at variable rates The
Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a regular basis Based on various scenanos the Group calculates the impact
on profit and loss for a defined interest rate shift

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a change in interest rates, with all other vanables held constant on the
Group's profit before tax There were no interest rate swap agreements in place throughout 2009 (2008 nil)

Effect on
Increase/ profit before
(decrease) in tax
basis points £m

2009 Cash +50/(50) 02/(02)
Borrowings +50 / (50) on/o

2008 Cash +50/(50) 02/(02)
Borrowings +50/(50) (02)/02

Credit and price risk

The Group monitors closely the availability of trade finance to its customers and supplers - given the constraint on the
business this can become The ability for the Group and its principal operations to maintain trade credit insurance on our
customers 1s a significant issue for the Group Where insurers inform us it 1s their intention to wathdraw or reduce trade
credit insurance cover on our customers we undertake detailed analysis on commercial and financial information available
and actively manage the terms of trade with any such customers as approprate In addition, the ability of our suppliers to
maintain credit insurance on the Group and its principal operations 1s an important issue We have excellent relationships
with our suppliers and we continue to work closely with them on a normal cemmercial basis There are no sigmificant
concentrations of credit sk within the Group The maximum credit risk exposure relating to financial assets is represented
by the carrying value as at the balance sheet date The Group's policy on mirimising credit nsk with respect to its trade and
other recewables is stated in note 16 on page 66

The Group 1s exposed to risk in the price movement of key raw matenals and energy The Group manages these nisks
and has in place a two year fixed price energy supply contract and a one year partially fixed steel supply contract for its
main actvities The Group continually reviews its exposure to any rematning commodity risk to ensure that commercial
opportunities are fully maximised and risks mitigated wherever possible

Foreign currency risk

The Group's mam transaction exposures are In respect of products manufactured in one currency region and sold 1n
another currency and exposure through the movement in exchanges rates on purchases of raw matenals and other goods
that are not denominated in sterling These are manly imports from Asia and the US which are denominated 1n US Dollars
and imports from Europe which are denominated in Euros These currency outflows are offset by inflows of US Dollars
relating to UK exports to US markets and inflows of Euros in respect of UK exports to the eurozone respectively The
main translation nsk 1s that the results of non-UK businesses will translate into differing sterling values depending on the
exchange rates

a)} Forward foreign exchange contracts
As a result of the Group's geographical presence and operations, forward foreign exchange contracts are put in place

As at 31st December 2009, the notional amounts of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts that the Group
was committed to were AUD nil (2008 AUD 11m), GBP 075m (2008 GBP 0 4m), CHF ril {2008 CHF 0 9m) and USD
ml (2008 USD 11m) The fair value of these open forward foreign exchange contracts approximate to their carrying
amount The contracts have been put in place to rmitigate the foreign currency nsk of anticipated future sales and purchase
commitments and mature over the next twelve months

There were no forward foreign exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges at the balance sheet date (2008 mil)
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19. Financial instruments {continued)

b) Hedge of net investment in foreign entities

The Group has Euro and U5 Dollar denominated borrowings, which it has designated as a hedge of a proportion of its
investment in its subsidianes in Europe and the US The carrying value of such Euro borrowings at 31st December 2009
was £6 6m (2008 £73m) and the carrying value of the US Dollar borrowings was £8 5m (2008 £6 8m) The exchange
difference on the translation of the borrowings into sterling has been recognised in translation reserves

Liquidity risk

The Group's funding objective 1s to have sufficient long-term commutted facilities, in addition to uncommitted facilities
and finance lease agreements, to meet its funding needs The Group maintains relationships with several large financial
mstitutions The Group’s committed loan facitities have two principal financial covenants, interest cover and net debt
EBITDA The Group comphed with them at the end of the year The Group has sound and long established arrangements
n ptace with its relationship banks who offer committed and uncommitted facihties, which together with cash flow
monitoring and cash surpluses, provide adequate funding for the Group's operations In the ordinary course, no commutted
facihties are due for renewal until November 2010 New facilities, if required are expected to be available from existing
lenders although this cannot be assured in light of the current market conditions

The Group maintains a mixture of short-term uncommitted and medium-term commited facilities to ensure a sufficient
level of funds and guarantee facilities are available for its business operations The £85 Om committed facilities have been
arranged to help finance the expansion of the Group’s activities These facilities incur commitment fees at market rates

The following table analyses utilisatton of the Group's principal committed facibties at the year-end

2009 2008

im £m

Expining within 1 year 100 -
Expinng between 1and 2 years - S0
Expiring between 2 and 5 years 324 259
Total undrawn committed facilities 424 309
Hedging loans 151 141
Sterling loans - 125
Guarantees provided 275 275
Total commutted facilities 850 850

In addition to the committed facilities detailed above, the Group alse has uncommutted facilities totalling £22 5m (2008
£315m)
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19 Financial instruments {continued)

Maturity profile of financial habilities
The table below summanses the matunity profile of the Group's finanaial habihties at 31st December 2009 and 2008
based on contractual undiscounted payments Floating rate borrowings are re-priced within six months from the balance

SLNMOJJVY IHL 01 S3LON

sheet date
Within t 5 years and
Interest rate year 1-2years 2-3years 3-dyears 4-5years over Total
2009 basis £ £m Em £m £m £m £m
Borrowings Floating 15 02 02 152 - 03 174
Trade payables 355 - - - - - 355
Other payables 86 - - - - - 86
Total 456 02 02 152 - 03 615
Within 1 5 years and
Interest rate year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-Syears over Total
2008 basis £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings Floating 109 61 08 Q7 218 03 406
Trade payables 3¢7 - - - - - 397
Other payables 69 - - - - - 69
Total 575 61 08 07 218 03 872

Carrying value

The carrying value of the Group's financial assets, including trade and other receivables and cash, and financial habilties,
including trade and other payables and borrowings, as disclosed 1n the balance sheet, are equivalent to therr fair value at
the balance sheet date

20. Provisions

At st tanuary 2009

Exchange adjustment

Charge in the year
Utilised in year

Product Property &

At 31st December 2009

warranties reorganisation Other Total
£m £m £m £m
33 13 84 130
02 - (03 (05)
15 09 02 26
(18) a7 (0% 44)
28 05S 74 107

Prowvisions have been allocated between current and non-current as follows

2009 2008

£Em £m

Current 24 43
Non-current 83 87
At 31st December 107 130

Product warranties

Provision 1s made for the estimated Labtlity on all products still under warranty Product warranties of between one and
three years are given for the Group's main products
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20 Prowisions (continued)

Property and reorganisation

Following the disposal programme of previous years certain vacant property located in the UK remain with the Group
Full provisien has been made for the residual lease commitments, together with other outgoings, for the remaining penod
of the leases The timing of payments on vacant properties 1s £01m repayable in less than one year The reorganisation
provision includes costs associated with announced reorgarisations within the Group which occurred during the year

Other

The Group's other provisions relate to the remaining costs in respect of the disposal of Pipe Systemsin 2001 and Foodservice
n 2007, including possible warranty and indemnity claims, other claims and other costs from third parties 1n relation to
divested businesses Although the majonily of these provisions may be realised in the next accounting period, the exact
timing 1s unclear

21 Deferred tax
Deferred tax 1s calculated on temporary differences under the balance sheet hability method using a tax rate of 28%
(2008 28%) The movement on the deferred tax account 1s shown below

2009 2008
Deferred tax - net £m £m
At 1st January 164 272
Exchange adjustment 02 on
Taken to equity - tax on actuanal loss (293) (79}
Credit to iIncome statement (note 8) (30) (28
Other 01 -
At 31st December (15 6) 16 4

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of al! tax losses and other temporary differences giving rise to deferred
tax assets because 1t I1s probable that these assets will be recovered

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities, prior to offsetting the balances, duning the year 1s shown below

Accelerated

tax

depreciation Other Pensions Total

Deferred tax habilities £m Em £m £m

At st January 2009 32 48 139 219
Credited to income statement (02) an - {19)
Taken to equity - tax on actuanal loss - - 139) (139)

At 31st December 2009 30 31 - 61

Pensions Provisions Tax losses Total

Deferred tax assets £m £m £m £m

At 1st January 2009 - 01 54 55
Exchange adjustment - - 02> 02

(Charged} / credited to income statement 16 [(eD )] (0 4) 11

Taken to equily - tax on actuarial foss 154 - - 154
Other on - - on

At 31st December 2009 169 - 48 Q7

The utihsation of the deferred tax asset 1s dependent on future taxable profits being in excess of the profits arising from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences
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22, Share capital
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Authorised and issued share capital 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 467/ p each 1744 818 174 4 818
Allotted, called up and fully paid
At 1st January 692 325 152 324
Share consolidation - - 461 -
issued on exercise of share options - - 01 [0} ]
At 315t December 692 325 692 325

During the year no ordinary shares were 1ssued in connection with the Company’s share option schemes {2008 01m

shares for £0 3m consideration)

On 9th May 2008, shareholders approved a share capital consolidation on the basis of 3 ordinary shares for every 5 existing
ordinary shares This provided for all of the authonsed ordinary shares of 28/ p each (whether issued or unissued) to be
consolidated into new ordinary shares of 467/s p each, which became effective on 12th May 2008

All of the ordinary shares rank equally with respect to voting nights and rights to receive ordinary and special dvidends

There are no restrictions on the nights to transfer shares

Options

Options outstanding at 31st December 2009 under the schemes were as follows

Senior Executive Share Option Scheme

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Number of  Exercisable in Option price Number of Grant price Exercisable n
Grant date shares 7 years to p per share Grant date shares pper share 7 years to
June 2001 58,000 June 200 236  October 2003 28,149 235  October 2003
May 2002 58,500 March 2012 261 May 2007 369,092 386 May 2017
October 2003 123,500  October 2013 235 May 2008 196 566 285 May 2018
Total 240,000 Total 593,807

Under the Long-Term Incentive Plan a fee of £1 per award 1s payable and no further consideration s due Further information

15 set out In note 23

Under the Sharesave Plan, introduced in 2008, the following options were outstanding

Sharesave Plan

Number of  Exercisable Option price
Grant date Shares to  ppershare
September 2008 133,338 May 2012 209
September 2008 269,399 May 2014 209
Total 402,737
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23 Share based payments

The Senior Executive Share Option Scheme was approved in 1994 Under the scheme the remuneration committee was
able to grant options over shares in the Company to semior executives of the Group, although the scheme lapsed in May
2004 Opticns were granted with a fixed exercise price equal to the market price of the shares under the option at the
date of grant The contractual life of an option was ten years Options granted under the scheme will become exercisable
on the third anniversary of the date of grant, subject to the Group's earmings per share exceeding, by at least 3% per
annurn, the increase in the UK's retail price index over a period of three years beginning not earlier than the Company's
last financial year before the date of an option grant The exercise of an option 1s subject to continued employment or
other ¢circumstances in the scheme rules Options granted since November 2002 were valued using Black-Scholes option
model

The Long-Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP") was introduced in 1999 as an appropriate method to incentivise executives and senior
management The LTIP consists of a right to acquire shares at a nominal price of £1 per award which will be exercisable
after a period of three years at the earliest For options granted before 2007 the actual percentage of shares that can be
acquired depends on two performance critena The first of these 15 a comparison of the Company’s total shareholder
return (‘TSR’) with the TSR of companies in a comparator group approved by the remuneration committee at the date
of grant and the second 1s that there has been a sustained improvement in the underlying financial performance of the
Company as determined by the remuneration committee

The FTSE 250 Index 1s used as the comparator group for LTIP options granted in 2006, 2007 and 2008

If the Company's TSR places it in the top 25% (upper quartile) of the comparator companies, the participant may acquire
all of the TSR linked shares If the Company's TSR is at the mid-point, 25% of the shares may be acquired There is a
shiding scale on a straight ine basis, if the Company’s TSR 15 between the upper quartile position and the mud-point |f the
Company's TSR 1s below the mid-point, none of the TSR hnked shares may be acquired

In 2007, the remuneration committee rewvised the performance cntena so that 50% of the award was based on the TSR
of companes in a comparator group at the date of grant and 50% of the award 1s monitored against an EPS target, where
growth of at least 3% compound In excess of RPI over the three year performance period 1s required for 25% of the award
to vest If growth exceeds 10% compound in excess of RPI then all wili vest None of the EPS monitored options will vest if
compound growth 15 less than 3%

In 2008, the remuneration commitiee revised the performance critenia to make the EPS perfermance condition more
challenging The EPS target now requires at least 5% compound growth in excess of RPlover the next three year performance
penod for 25% of the award to vest If growth exceeds 12% 1n excess of RPI then all the options will vest None of the EPS
momtored options will vest if compound growth 1s less than 5%

The fair value per option of the Sharesave Plan options and LTIPs granted in 2008 and the assumptions used in the
calculation are as follows

Sharesave Plan Sharesave Plan LTIP

Grant date 26th September 26th September 12th May
2008 2008 2008

Share price at grant date 209p 209p 2854p
Exercise pnce £209 £209 £11n total
Number of employees 122 100 6
Shares under option 164,232 331,900 204,518
Vesting period (years) 3 5 3
Expected volatility 29 2% 351% 29 2%
Option hife (years) 3 5 10
Expected life (years) 3 5 3
Expected dividend expressed as a dividend yield 6 0% 6 0% 5 0%
Expectations of meeting performance criteria 90% S0% 20%
Fair value per option TSR element / EPS element 21p 22p £Q 89/ £245
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23 Share based payments (continued)
The expected volatility 1s based on histoncal volatiity over ten years The expected life 1s the average number of years to
the date of expected exercise A Monte-Carlo model was used to value TSR performance conditions for the LTIP

The total charge for the year relating to employee share based payment plans was £0 2m (2008 £nil) before tax and
£01m (2008 £nil) post tax

A reconciliation of the movements in the Senior Executive Share Option Scheme 1s shown below

2009 2008
Weighted Weghted
Number average exercise Number average exercise
‘000 price (p) ‘000 price (p)
Qutstanding at 1st January 280 239 685 258
Lapsed expired C:10)] 225 - -
Lapsed forfeited - - {306) 282
Exercised - - (99) 239
Qutstanding at 31st December 240 242 280 239
Exercisable at 31st December 240 242 280 239
2009 2008
Weighted Weighted
Range of average average
exercise exercise  Number of Weighted average exercise  Number of Weighted average
prices price shares remaming life price shares remaining hfe
Expected Contractual Expected Contractual
P p ‘000 years years p ‘000 years years
225-235 235 123 19 38 233 163 19 38
236-261 249 117 10 19 249 17 15 29
240 280

There were no options exercised in the year, the weighted average share price dunng the year for options exercised in
2008 was 317p

A reconciliation of the movements in the Sharesave Plan and LTIP 1s shown below

Sharesave Sharesave

2009 LTIP 2009 2008 LTIP 2008

‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Outstanding at 1st January 473 778 - 869
Exercised - - - (50)
Lapsed expired - - - (242)
Lapsed forfeited (70) (184) (23) (4)
Granted - - 496 205
Qutstanding at 31st December 403 594 473 778
Exeraisable at 31st December - 28 - 28

Details of the Sharesave Plan are shown in the audited part of the remuneration report on pages 39 to 41
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24 Purchase of Mercury

On 25th August 2009 the Group acquired the Mercury and Thermastone cooker brands from Lincat Group plc for a

consideration of £0 5m

The cost has been allocated between brands £0 2m and other intangibles £0 3m (note 13)

25 Otherreserves

Fair value Capital
revaluation  Translation  redemption  Revaluation
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
£m £m £im £m £m
At ist January 2009 15 169 750 21 955
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations - oD - - 92
Transfer to retaned earnings - - - 2n 2n
Exchange differences on hedge of net investments - 16 - - 16
At 31st December 2009 15 93 750 - 858
Fair value Capital
revaluation  Transiation redemption  Revaluation
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At st January 2008 15 (25) 360 21 37
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations - 226 - - 226
Transfer between reserves - - 390 - 390
Exchange differences on hedge of net investments - 32 - - 32)
At 31st December 2008 15 169 750 21 955

The fair value revaluation reserve relates to the 2005 acquisition of an additional stake in Grange which gave the Group
a controlling interest The translation reserve includes all exchange adjustments in respect of overseas operations
The capital redemption reserve has arisen through share buy-backs and the share consohdation in previous years The
revaluation reserve that had anisen through revaluation of property prior to the adoption of IFRS has now been transferred

to retained earnings

26, Commitments

2009
£m

Capital commitments contracted for by the Group for property, plant
and equipment but not provided for in the accounts 06

2008
£m

07

76 AGA Rangemaster Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2009




27. Operating lease commitments

Land and buldings Other operating leases

2009 2008 2009 2008
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases £m £m Em Em
- within 1 year 53 55 n 11
- between 1and 5 years 154 150 22 19
- after more than 5 years 143 i31 01 -
Total operating lease commitments 350 336 34 30

The operating lease comnutments relate to properties, motor vehicles and plant and machinery The leases have various
terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights

28 Contingent hiabilities

The Group has no other matenal contingent habilities arising in the normal course of business at 31st December 2009
(2008 mil) The Group has contingent habilities for certain potential claims from third parties in relation to divested
businesses On the basis of information presently available to them, the directors believe that no matenal claims are likely
to anise for which provision has not been made 1n these accounts

The Group has arranged £50 Om of bank guarantees, to guarantee obligations of the Group to the AGA Rangemaster Group
Pension Scheme which may anse in the peried up to 2020, of which £22 5m 15 collateral as disclosed in note 18(a)

29. Related party transactions

The Group recharges the Group pension scheme with the cost of admunistration and independent advisers paid by the
Group Thetotal amount recharged in the yearto 31st December 2009 was £0 2m (2008 £0 2m) The amount outstanding
at the year end was £nil (2008 £nil}

The Group paid £40,000 to Rise Rocks Limited, a company wholly owned by Peter Tomn, a non-executive director For
further details see the remuneration report on page 38

Key management’s compensation
The compensation of the key management team at the balance sheet date 15 set out below

Restated

2009 2008

£m Em

Salanes and short-term benefits 18 17
Post employment benefits 01 02
Share based payments 01 -
Termination benefits 02 -
Total emoluments to key management 22 19

The 2008 figures have been restated to include the executive directors
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30. Trading subsidiaries
The following 15 a list of the Group’s principal trading subsidiaries at 31st Decernber 2009 A brief description of therr
activities 1s given in the chief executive's review on pages 4 to 10 The share capital in each case consists, unless otherwise
stated, wholly of ordinary shares or common stock All companies are held by subsidiary undertakings, except for those
marked * in which case 1t is held directly by AGA Rangemaster Group plc

Where subsidiaries are not wholly owned the percentage of owned capital 1s stated in brackets Unless otherwise stated
the companies are registered tn England and operate in the United Kingdom Al subsidiaries included tn the consohdation

have coterminous year-ends

AGA Rangemaster Limited (formerly AGA Consumer Products Limited) trades in

the UK principally under the trade and business names of
AGA

Divertiment:
Falcon

Fired Earth
Letsure Sinks
Mercury

Rangemaster

Principal overseas trade and business names
AGA Marvet

Falcon France (branch)}

Grange SA (France) 95% (2008 75%)
Heartland Apphances Inc (Canada)

La Cornue SA (France)

Northland Corporation (USA)
Waterford Stanley Limited (EIRE)

Central Services
ARG Corporate Services Limited «
AGA Rangemaster Properties Limited »

31. Post balance sheet event

Website addresses

www aga-web co uk

www agacoakshop co uk

www rayburn-web co uk

www divertimentico uk

www falconappliances co uk
www firedearth com

www leisuresinks co uk

www mercury-appliances co uk

www rangemaster co uk

www aga-marvel com

WWWw aga-ranges com

www falconfrance com
www grange fr

www heartlandapp com
www lacarnue com

www northlandnka com
www waterfordstanley com

www stanleystoves com

A Deed of Amendment was signed on 12th lanuary 2010 in respect of freezing pensionable salaries for those members
whose salaries were not frozen in 2009 A curtailment gain to be calculated by Towers Watson, the actuary, in respect of

liabilities accrued to date of around £15m s expected to anse in 2010
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Independent auditor's report

TO THE MEMBERS OF AGA RANGEMASTER GROUP PLC
We have audited the Group financial statements of AGA
Rangemaster Group plc for the year ended 31st December
2009 which comprise consofidated income statement, the
consohidated statement of comprehensive (losses) / income,
consohidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash flow
statement, the consohdated statement of changes in equity
and the related notes 1 to 31 The financial framework that
has been applied in thewr preparation 1s applicable law and
International financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs’) as
adopted by the European Union

This report (s made solely to the Company's members,
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work has been undertaken so
that we rmight state to the Company's members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities
statement set out on page 26, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the Group financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur
responsibility 1s to audit the Group financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's’) Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error Thus includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Group's circumstances and
have been consistently applted and adequately disclosed,
the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estimates made
by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the Group financial statements

= gwve a true and fair view of the state of the Group's affans
as at 31st December 2009 and of 1ts profit for the year
then ended,

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Unton, and

«  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation

Optmon on other matter prescribed by the Compamies Act
2006

In our opinion

+  the nformation given in the directors’ report for the
financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared 1s consistent with the Group financial
statements, and

+ the informatron given in the corporate governance
statement set out on pages 27 to 33 with respect to
internal control and nsk management systems in relation
to financial reporting processes and about share capital
structures 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to
you if, In our opinion

= certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

*  we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

* thedirectors’ statement, set out on page 24, in relation to
going congern, and

= the part of the corporate governance statement on pages
27 to 33 relating to the Company's comphance with the
nine provisions of the 2008 Combined Code specified for
our review

Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent Company financial
statements of AGA Rangemaster Group plc for the year ended
31st December 2009 and on the information in the directors’
remunergtion report that i1s descnbed as having been audited

Bruce Morton (Semior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Birmingham

12th March 2010

-
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Trading results £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 2450 2754 2918 2786 5018
Operating prohit before non-recurning cost 39 165 304 293 15
Non-recurnng cost (36) (53) - (10) -
Total operating profit 03 nz2 304 283 115
Net finance income/(cost) 02 32 (3 4) (08) 12
Profit before income tax 05 144 270 275 427
Income tax expense - 27 (4 2) (62) (86)
Profit before disposal of businesses/
discontinued 05 n7 228 213 341
Disposal of businesses/discontinued - - 407 98 03
Profit for year 05 17 635 3N 344
Statistics
Operating profit before non-recurring costs
o revenue % 16 59 104 105 83
Dividend per ordinary share p - 40 ns 105 92
Earmings per share
Basic p 25 144 8¢ 165 264
Diluted p 25 14 4 187 16 4 263

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Balance sheet summary £m £m £m £m £m
Net operating assets
Property, plant and equipment 508 587 517 857 853
Inventories 460 635 549 948 894
Operating receivables less payables and provisions (42 2) (399) (419) (384) (447}
Total net operating assets before intangibles 546 823 647 1421 1300
Assets held for sale 3N 19 - - -
Net retirement benefit (obligation)/surplus 405) 575 796 24 4 (18 23
Intangibles 901 949 781 2006 1733
Total net operating assets 1073 2366 2224 3671 2851
Investments - - - - 03
Tax am (259) (34 4) (208 48)
Total net cash/(borrowings) 280 58 1691 (109) 204
Total net assets employed 134 3 216 5 3571 3354 3010
Financed by
Ordinary shares 325 325 324 323 321
Reserves 1013 182 2 3226 3012 266 6
Total shareholders’ equity 1338 2147 3550 3335 2987
Minority interests 05 18 21 19 23
Total equity 134 3 2165 3571 3354 3010

The results for 2005 are not directly comparable as these have not been restated to reflect the operations discontinued in

2007
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Parent company accounts under UK GAAP

Company balance sheet asarsistoecemses

As noted on page 26 the Company has elected to prepare its financial statements under UK GAAP

2009 2008
Notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Investments 5 4680 4572
Total fixed assets 468 O 4572
Current assets
Debtors - amounts falling due within one year 5308 5830
- amounts fzlling due after one year 377 437
Cash at bank and in hand 338 34
Total current assets 6023 6581
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
Creditors 8 (6839) (704 3)
Borrowings a4 61
Total amounts falling due within one year (685 3) (710 4>
Net current habilities (830) (523>
Total assets tess current habihties 3850 4049
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings 7 (151) (26 6)
Provisions for habihties and charges 9 61 72
Total net assets employed 3638 3711
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 10 325 325
Share premium account 1 296 296
Capital redemption reserve 1 750 750
Protit and loss account n 2267 2340
Total shareholders funds 3638 3

The accounts on pages 81 to 86 were approved by the board of directors on 12th March 2010 and were signed on

its behalf by
W B McGrath Chief Executive
S M Smith Finance Director

Notes to the accounts are on pages 82 to 86

Gs WE@nkkc/.
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The directors’ report 1s on pages 22 to 25 of the Annual Report and Accounts

1.  Accounting policies

Basis of accounting
The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards
and the Companies Act 2006

A conseclidated Group cash flow stalement has been included in the AGA Rangemaster Group plc consolidated accounts,
the Company has therefore taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 1 not to produce a cash flow statement

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 29 from financial instrument disclosures

Cash
Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an
oniginal maturity of three months or less

Interest bearing loans and berrowings

Obhigations for loans and borrowings are recogmsed when the Company becomes party to the related contracts and are
measured initially at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs After imhial recogrition, interest bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method Gains and losses anising
on the repurchase, settlement or cancellation of habthties are recogrised respectively in finance revenue and finance cost

Borrowings are classified as current habilities unless the Company has an unconditional rnight to defer settlement of the
hiability at the balance sheet date

Foreign currencies

The Company's functional currency and the presentation currency 1s pounds sterling Transactions in foreign currencies
are imitially recorded in the functional currency by applying the spot exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of
exchange ruhing at the balance sheet date Ali differences are taken to the profit and loss account, except when hedge
accounting1s apphed These are taken directly to reserves until the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, at which time
they are recognised in the profit and loss account

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the imitial transactions Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
franslated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined

Deferred tax

Deferred tax s provided in respect of all timing differences, using the balance sheet liability method Deferred income tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it i1s probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the timing
differences can be utilised

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing differences are
expected to reverse based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date Income tax 1s provided for using current rates

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost and reviewed for impairment annually where there are indicators that suggest
the amount might not be recoverable

Provisions

The Company's other provisions relate to the remaining costs in respect of the disposal of the Pipe Systems and Foodservice
operations, including probable warranty and indemmity claims, other claims and other costs from thwrd parties in relation
to divested businesses
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1  Accounting pohcies (continued)

Employee share options

The expenses for equity instruments granted are recogrised 1n the financial statements based on their {air value at the
date of grant This expense, which 1s primarily 1n relation to employee share options and LTIP schemes, 1s recognised
over the vesting pertod of the schemes - the Company has principally adopted the Black Scholes model and a TSR pricing
model, respectively, for the purposes of computing fair value The measurement of this expense 1s only calculated on
options granted after 7th November 2002

For LTIP options granted in 2008 and 2007 the performance critena 1s now 50% based on a TSR pnicing model and 50%
on EPS growth against RPI The Sharesave Plan was approved in 2008

The estimatton of share based payment costs requires the selection of an appropriate valuation model, consideration as
to the inputs necessary for the valuation model chosen and the estimation of the number of awards that will ultimately
vest, inputs for which anse from judgements relating to the probability of meeting non-market performance conditions
and the continuing participation of employees Any awards that do not ultimately vest are lapsed Where employees exit
the Sharesave Plan this is treated as a cancellation with immediate recognition of any expense for the award not previously
recognised

2. Company profit and loss account
AGA Rangemaster Group ple has taken advantage of section 408(4) of the Companies Act 2006 and has not included 1its
own profit and loss account in these accounts The Company's loss after tax was £75m (2008 profit £53 9m)}

The profit and loss account includes £40,500 (2008 £39,000) for audit fees

3. Dividends and cash return

2009 2008

£m £m

Nil final dividend paid for the year ended 31st December 2008 (2007 765 pence per share) - 87
Nif interim dividend paid (2008 4 O pence per share) - 28
MNil return of cash (2008 £1 21 per share) - 1397
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity sharehaolders in the year - 1512

The directors are not recommending a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31st December 2009 (2008
i)

There was no actual divtdend (ordinary or special) paid or cash returned in the year (2008 132 65 pence per share)

4. Directors' compensation
The compensation, share options, Long-Term Incentive Plans and pensions of the directors are disclosed in the audited
part of the remuneration committee report on pages 39 to 41 of the Consolidated Annual Report and Accounts

5. Investments

Cost of Net book
shares Provisions value
£m Em £m
Interest in subsidianes
At st January 4572 - 4572
Additions 16 2 (2% 133
Dormant companies struck off (25) - (25)
At 31st December 4709 (29) 468 0

The additions in the year relate to the capitalisation of a £2 Bm inter-company loan at AGA Marvel and the setting up of a
new UK holding company ARG Solutions Limited for £13 4m
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gl B

& Trade and other debtors

2009 2008
Amounts falling due within one year £m £m
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 5300 5811
Prepaymenis and accrued income 06 05
Other recewvables 02 14
Debtors falling due within one year 5308 5830
Deferred tax 05 -
Corporation tax recoverable falling due aftes one year 372 437
Debtors falling due after one year 377 437
7. Cash and borrowings
a) Cash
2009 2008
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 338 314
Cash 338 314

The Company's cash balance of £33 8m includes £22 5m, which 1s collateralised against a bank guarantee that the
Company has provided to the AGA Rangemaster Group Pension Scheme

Included in cash and cash equivalents was cash held for unclaimed dividends of £0 5m (2008 £05m)

b) Financial liabilities - net borrowings

2009 2008

£m £m

Bank borrowings 14 61

Amounts faling due within one year i4 61

Bank borrowings 151 266

Amounts falling due after one year 151 266

Total borrowings 165 327
Cash and cash equivalents (338) (314)

Total net (cash)/borrowings 73) 13

The Company's borrowings are primanly loan advances denorminated in a number of currencies and interest 1s based on
LIBOR or foreign equivalents The amounts falling due within one year have a maturity of under one month

The loans are unsecured The amounts falling due after one year are due for repayment in 2013
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8 Creditors
2009 2008
Amounts falling due within one year £m £m
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 6818 7022
Accruals and deferred income 12 18
Other payables 09 03
Total creditors {alling due within one year 6839 7043
9. Provisions
Deferred

tax Other Total

£m £m £m
At 1st January 2009 06 66 72
Utilised in year - (05 (05)
Transfer to assets 05 - 05
Credit in the year an - an
At 31st December 2009 - 61 61

The Company's other provisions relate to the remaining costs in respect of the disposal of Pipe Systems in 2001 and
Foodservice in 2007, including possible warranty and indemnuty claims, other claims and cther costs from third parties in
relation to divested bustnesses Although the majority of these provisions may be realised in the next accounting period,
the exact timing 1s unclear

10. Share capital

Authornised and issued share capital

2009 2008

Authonised £m £m £m £m
Ordinary shares of 467/sp each 1744 818 174 4 818
Allotted, called up and fully paid

At 1st January 69 2 325 ns2 324
Share consolidation - - (461) -
Issued on exercise of share options - - o1 o1
At 31st December 692 325 692 325

During the year no ordinary shares were 1ssued in connection with the Company's share option schemes (2008 O1m
shares for £0 3m consideration)

On 9th May 2008, shareholders approved a share capital consohdation on the basis of 3 erdinary shares for every 5 existing
ordinary shares This provided for all of the authonised ordinary shares of 28Y/s p each (whether issued or unissued) to be
consohdated into new ordinary shares of 46%/ap each, which became effective on 12th May 2008

All of the ordinary shares rank equally with respect to voting rights and rights to recewve ordinary and special dividends
There are no restrnictions on the rights to transfer shares

Share based payments
Options outstanding at 31st December 2009 and share based payments disclosures are shown in notes 22 and 23 of the
Consolidated Annual Report and Accounts
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11 Reserves

Capital

Share Share  redemption Profit and Total

capital premium reserve  loss account equity

£m £m £m £m £m

At Ist fanuary 2009 325 296 750 2340 3m
Loss for year - - - (75) (75>

Share based payments - - - 02 02

At 31st December 2009 325 296 750 2267 3638

The Company's profit and loss account reserves of £226 7m (2008 £234 Om) include approximately £168 9m (2008
£168 7m) which i1s unavailable for distribution, leaving £57 8m available for distnibution

12 Commtments
The Company had no capital commitments (2008 nil)

13 Contingent habihties

The Company has no other matenal contingent liabihties ansing in the normal course of business at 31st December 2009
(2008 nil) The Company has contingent lrabilities for certain potential claims from third parties in relation to divested
businesses On the basis of information presently available to them, the directors believe that no matenial claims are likely
to anse for which provision has not been made in these accounts The Company has given a number of financtal and
performance guarantees on behalf of subsidiaries, the relevant liabilities are included in the balance sheet

The Group has arranged £50 Om of bank guarantees, to guarantee obhgations of the Company to the AGA Rangemaster
Group Pension Scheme which may arise in the period up to 2020, of which £22 5m of cash 1s collateral as disclosed in
note 7(a)

14. Related party transactions
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption permitted by FRS 8 not to disclose any transactions or balances with
entities that are 100% controlled by the AGA Rangemaster Group plc

The Company was owed an amount by it's indirectly owned 95% subsidiary, Grange SA The balance at 31st December
2009 was £1 8m (2008 £52m) The maximum balance during the year was £6 3m of this £6 2m was capitalised

The Company paid £40,000 to Rise Rocks Limited, a company wholly owned by Peter Tom, a non-executive director, for
further details see the remuneration report on page 38

15. Trading subsidiaries
The Company’s principal trading subsidiaries at 31st Decemnber 2009 are listed in note 30 of the Consolidated Annual
Report and Accounts
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The following statement, which should be read In
conjunction with the statement of auditors’ responsibilities
set out on page 88, 1s made with a view to distinguishing
the respective responsibilities of the directors and of the
auditors in relation to the accounts

The directors are required to prepare financial statements
for each financial year which comply with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 and give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the
financial year and of the profit or loss for that year

The directors consider that in preparing the financial
staterments on a going-concern basis, the Company has
used appropriate accounting policies, consistently apphed
and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates, and that all accounting standards which they
consider to be applicable have been ollowed

The directors are responsible for ensuring that the
Company maintains accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the
Company and which enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006

The directors are responsible for taking such steps as
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of
the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities
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Independent auditor’s report

TO THE MEMBERS OF AGA RANGEMASTER GROUP PLC
We have audited the parent Company financiat statements
of AGA Rangemaster Group plc for the year ended 3ist
December 2009 which comprise Company balance sheet and
the related notes 1 to 15 The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members,
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Cormpany's members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for
ne other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
net accept or assume responstbihty to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully m the directors’ responsibilities
statement set out on page 8/, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the parent Company finangal
statements and for being sabisfied that they give a true and
fair view Qur responsibility 15 to avdit the parent Company
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the aud:t of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the parent Company's
arcurnstances and have been consistently apptied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigrificant
accounting eshimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinton the parent Company financial statements

*  give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at 31st December 2009,

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

*  have been prepared i accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act
2006
In our opinton

« the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006, and

« the information given in the directors’ report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent wath the parent Company financial
statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you
If, In our opinion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us, or

»  the parent Company financial statements and the part of
the directors’ remuneratton report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

= certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

= we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

Other matter

We have reported separately on the Group financa!
statements of AGA Rangemaster Group plc for the year ended
31st December 2009

Bruce Morton (Semor statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Birmingham

12th March 2010
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Regarding the disclosure on page 23 of the 2009 Annual Report and Accounts, under the heading “Share capital” Paragraph
five I1s deleted and replaced with the following

“Al the 2009 AGM, shareholders approved a resolution to permit directors to allot ordinary shares of 467/8p each up to
an aggregate nominal value of £10,818,136 (being approximately one third of the nominal value of the Company’s 1ssued
ordinary share capital) No shares have been allotted during the year This authority will expire at the forthcoming AGM
and, in accordance with current best practice, the Company will seek to renew it Since the 2009 AGM, the Company has
not had the authonty to undertake market purchases of its own shares No shares have been purchased dunng the year
and the Company does not hold any shares in treasury In accordance with current best practice, the Company will seek
authornity from shareholders to undertake market purchases of its own shares at the forthcorming AGM”
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